
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Environment & Community Safety Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 31 October 2011 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Morgan (Chair), Sykes (Deputy Chair), Cobb, 
Gilbey, Hawtree, Janio, Jones and Littman 

Contact: Mary van Beinum 
Overview & Scrutiny Support Officer 
01273 - 29 - 1062 
mary.vanbeinum@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

22. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

23. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 5 SEPTEMBER AND 14 
OCTOBER 2011 (CALL-IN) 

3 - 12 

 

24. CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS 13 - 16 

 

25. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/ LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/REFERRALS 
FROM COMMITTEES/NOTICES OF MOTION REFERRED FROM 
COUNCIL 

 

 

26. MONITORING THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF 20MPH LIMITS/ZONES 17 - 30 

 

27. COUNCIL-SUPPORTED BUS SERVICES 31 - 52 

 

28. MONITORING SCRUTINY REVIEWS: SERVICES FOR VICTIMS OF 
SEXUAL VIOLENCE AND OLDER PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY 
SAFETY 

53 - 90 

 

29. FUTURE OF CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY 91 - 96 

 

30. ECSOSC DRAFT WORK PLAN 97 - 100 

 

31. ITEMS TO BE REFERRED TO CABINET MEMBER, CABINET OR 
FULL COUNCIL 

 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Mary van Beinum, 



ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

(01273 - 29 - 1062, email mary.vanbeinum@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Date of Publication - Friday, 21 October 2011 

 

 

 





Agenda Item 22  

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS. 

A. Declaration of Substitutes 

 
Where a Member of the Commission is unable to attend a meeting for 
whatever reason, a substitute Member (who is not a Cabinet Member) may 
attend and speak and vote in their place for that meeting. Substitutes are not 
allowed on Scrutiny Select Committees or Scrutiny Panels. 
 
The substitute Member shall be a Member of the Council drawn from the 
same political group as the Member who is unable to attend the meeting, and 
must not already be a Member of the Commission. The substitute Member 
must declare themselves as a substitute, and be minuted as such, at the 
beginning of the meeting or as soon as they arrive.  

B. Declarations of Interest 

  
(1)  To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial interests 

under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in relation to matters 
on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such interests are required to 
clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

   
(2)    A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a prejudicial interest in 
any business at meeting of that Committee where –  

 
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by the Executive or another of the Council’s 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees; 
and 
 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the Member 
was  
 

 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee and  

 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 
 
(3)      If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the Member 

concerned:-  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place while 
the item in respect of which the declaration is made is under 
consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule which are set out 
at paragraph (4) below]. 
(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business and  
(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that business. 

 
(4)    The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a prejudicial 

interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect of which the 
interest has been declared is under consideration are:-

1



 

 
 

(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the item, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise, BUT the Member must leave immediately 
after he/she has made the representations, answered the questions, or 
given the evidence, 
 
(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee, or 
 
(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has been 
required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Sub-
Committee to answer questions. 

C. Declaration of party whip 

 
To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in relation 
to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

D. Exclusion of press and public 

 
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from 
the meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 
 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its heading the 
category under which the information disclosed in the report is confidential 
and therefore not available to the public. 
 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 
 

2



Agenda Item 23a 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

10.00AM 14 OCTOBER 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Morgan (Chair); Sykes (Deputy Chair), Cobb, Hawtree, Janio, Jones, 
Lepper and Rufus 
 
Also present: Councillors Ian Davey, Anne Pissaridou and Garry Peltzer Dunn 

 
 

PART ONE 
22. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
22a Declarations of Substitutes 
Councillor Lepper was substituting for Councillor Gilbey and Councillor Rufus for Councillor 
Littman. 
 
22b Declarations of Interests 
There were none. 
 
22c Declaration of Party Whip 
There were none. 
 
22d Exclusion of Press and Public 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100I (1) of the said Act. 
 
RESOLVED: That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
23. PARKING REVIEW CALL-IN REQUEST 

23.1  Councillor Warren Morgan, Chair of ESCOSC welcomed everyone to the call-in meeting 
including Councillor Ian Davey, Cabinet Member for Transport and Public Realm and 14 
Members of the public present. Councillor Hawtree was welcomed as a new Member of the 
Committee. 

23.2        Councillor Morgan noted the many challenges of parking that affected all wards in the 
City. However this meeting was not convened to consider individual details of parking 
arrangements. Instead, the Committee would consider requests from Councillor Pissaridou and 
Councillor Peltzer Dunn for call-in of the decision on the Citywide Parking Review. Then, 

3



 ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

14 OCTOBER 
2011 

hearing from Councillor Ian Davey the Cabinet Member for Transport and the Public Realm 
and from officers, determine whether or not to refer back the 4 October Environment Transport 
and Sustainability Cabinet Member Meeting Decision, for reconsideration. The Senior Scrutiny 
Officer described the call-in process 

23.3     Introducing her request Councillor Pissaridou said she felt the decision was flawed as 
the timetable was misleading and unclear. Councillor Pissaridou argued there was insufficient 
consultation undertaken in relation to the decision. There had been major concerns for more 
than four years and residents were angry that consultations had been postponed. Changes to 
the programme of reviews had not been properly explained or consulted upon, she said. 

23.4        Councillor Peltzer Dunn said the draft minutes of the CMM meeting neither recorded his 
comment on a petition relating to Kestrel Close, nor referred to inconsistencies in the report 
that he had raised at the CMM meeting. Residents living between Saxon Road and Wish Road 
felt they had been misled and may have voted differently, had they known the consultation only 
extended up to Wish Road, he stated.  

23.5       Councillor Peltzer Dunn spoke about his call-in request and the response at Appendix 5. 
He questioned the wording of the CMM report recommendations about timescales. For 
example Appendix B was not a list of extensions to parking schemes but merely a timetable of 
parking reviews and the meaning of ‘Based on one project manager’ was not clear. He queried 
the practical implications of resolution (b) in the Record of the Cabinet Member Decision that 
‘Officers are instructed to review the timetable in Appendix B’ and said that the resolution (e) 
did not state when the parking review would commence. 

23.6    The January 2008 Environment Committee had acknowledged the sustained 
representation made since 2007in particular areas (Wish Park), and had agreed a timetable 
that showed work on West Hove/Portslade would start in 2010 (paras 6.10 and 6.14 at 
Appendix 5, attachment).  

 23.7     Regarding reaching a consensus view on a suitable area; CMM report was misleading 
in that paragraph 3.4 implied that action had already been taken in West Hove/Portslade; 
however he had not been consulted nor had there had consultation with former Councillor 
Kemble or former or current South Portslade Councillors, he told the meeting. Other Ward 
Councillors later commented they had not been consulted. 

23.8 It was not clear that resources were in place to work to an accelerated timetable and the 
decision appeared to be inconsistent. It would be contradictory to carry out works in some parts 
of the City before the Citywide Review in his opinion. Therefore Councillor Peltzer Dunn said 
the decision was flawed and should be reconsidered in two separate programmes. 

23.9 The Wish Park Residents’ Association Chair made a submission on behalf of the 
Association and residents living close to Wish Park and Aldrington recreation ground, detailing 
reasons that the decision was ‘grossly unfair,’ in their view, and requesting that Wish Park (not 
Wish ward as a whole) be treated as a priority for consultation. The submission circulated for 
inspection by the Committee.  

23.10 Councillor Ian Davey Cabinet Member for Transport and the Public Realm  
acknowledged the long history of issues around parking including the Wish area. The timetable 
agreed in 2008 covered four areas that were intentionally relatively large to minimise overspill 

4



 ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

14 OCTOBER 
2011 

to neighbouring areas. All work on further schemes was halted due to cuts in national funding. 
Three of the four schemes had been designed, consulted on and were partially implemented. 
No work was done on West Hove and Portslade.  (It was later noted that West Hove/Portslade 
Station, priority 4 area at the time, was rescinded at July 2010 CMM.) 

23.11 Councillor Davey told the Committee that, rather than awaiting the outcome of the 
Citywide Parking Review, taking around 18 months, his preferred option was to take action 
now in high priority areas identified from an analysis of road safety concerns, previous council 
consultation and levels of community and Ward Member support, as summarised at report 
Appendix A. 

23.12 Councillor Davey was familiar with the parking problems in West Hove and Portslade 
however residents in only a small area had been consulted. Residents around Wish Park 
wanted a scheme and Ward Members were in support of a scheme covering a wider area, 
which required more resources. Officers were therefore asked to accelerate the timetable if 
possible as part of the budget considerations and a working group for the Wish ward had been 
suggested. 

23.13 The Citywide parking review had full support of all political groups however the previous 
budget had not allocated funding for work during 2011-2012. It was hoped to identify resources 
in next year’s budget. A similar review elsewhere had cost £200,000 and taken 2 years to 
complete; experience in other local authorities would be drawn upon but this level of funding 
was unlikely to be available here, he commented. 

23.14 This was therefore a reasonable decision that would as least resolve some pressing 
problems though could not possibly solve all at once. 

23.15 Councillor Davey answered questions on: the reason for combining two separate 
elements into one decision; why CMM did not reconsider, when it was clear that Ward 
Councillors had not felt properly consulted; the time taken for implementing schemes; and 
implications of self-financing schemes, especially regarding light touch.  

23.16 He detailed why Wish area and West Hove and Portslade were different from the 
schemes that would proceed urgently, and told Members that he wanted to minimise any time 
wasted on schemes that are designed but then rejected at consultation stage, as happened in 
the two latest consultations. Work on the new schemes was not incompatible with the citywide 
review; one would inform the other, he stated. 

23.17 Replying to questions the Project Manager Owen McElroy said some terminology might 
have been misunderstood.  For example ‘proposed extensions and adjustments’ are reviews. 
Consultation responses are generally accepted up until Cabinet Member meetings. Road 
safety concerns could have been ranked; Appendix A was a summary table and 
recommendations were based on a range of technical grounds. Resources were available for 
the timetable in Appendix B and work was done as quickly as possible but extra resources 
depended on the budget process. The Citywide Review involving all stakeholders would start 
as soon as authorised. 

23.18 The Senior Scrutiny Officer set out the decision-making rules in Article 13 of the 
Constitution. 

5



 ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

14 OCTOBER 
2011 

23.19 Councillor Davey then left the room. Members considered the call-in requests and 
discussed the details of the timetabling of the reviews and the principles of consultation; the 
extent of linkage between the elements of the decision; the potential benefits of a 
reconsideration, whether referral would be proportionate, the plight of Wish area residents; and 
possible implications of calling in the decision. 

23.20 The Deputy Chair Councillor Ollie Sykes said ideally operations would follow strategic 
and tactical reviews but on balance there was justification for going ahead with urgent reviews 
before the Citywide review. A call-in would not necessarily benefit Wish area residents in his 
opinion. 

23.21 The Lead Commissioner City Regulation and Infrastructure explained that funding from 
revenue streams, of the Citywide Parking Review was independent of the capital budget to be 
used for urgent reviews/adjustments. 

23.22 Councillor Cobb suggested that the Citywide Parking Review be accelerated, and 
individual reviews then follow. 

23.23 Summarising, the Chair reiterated the difficulties of balancing competing views and 
financial pressures when dealing with parking issues. Councillor Morgan proposed that due to 
concerns including lack of consultation, the combination of both the strategy review and 
alterations to the timetable for parking scheme implementation, and unclear timetables and 
resources, the decision be referred back for reconsideration. He proposed that the Citywide 
Parking Review be considered separately from the programme of other parking reviews. 
Whether or not to include a Wish review, and consultation with Ward Members residents 
should also be considered by CMM. 

23.24 The proposal was agreed following a vote. 

23.25 RESOLVED (i) that the decision be called in.  

(ii) that the CMM meeting consider separately the decisions on the Citywide Parking Review 
and the programme of other reviews/consultations 

(iii) that the CMM meeting consider consultation with relevant Ward Members and residents, 
and whether or not to undertake an urgent  Wish review. 

The meeting concluded at 11.45am 
 
 

 
Signed Chair 

6



Agenda Item 23 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

4.00PM 5 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Morgan (Chair); Sykes (Deputy Chair), Cobb, Gilbey, Janio, Jones and 
Littman 
 

 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

11. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
11.1 The Chair Councillor Warren Morgan welcomed everyone to the meeting especially 
members of the public. Referring to the Requests for scrutiny on the agenda he stressed that it 
was not the role of the Committee to discuss details here, but to decide whether or not to 
proceed with any scrutiny action. 
 
11a Declarations of Substitutes 
 
There were none. 
 
11b Declarations of Interests 
 
There were none 
 
11c Declaration of Party Whip 
 
There were none. 
 
11d Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100I (1) of the said Act. 
 
11.2 RESOLVED: That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
12. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6 JUNE 2011 

7



 

 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

5 SEPTEMBER 
2011 

 
12.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2011 were agreed and signed by the Chair.  
 
13. CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS 
 
13.1 The Chair Councillor Warren Morgan reminded the Committee that an informal workshop 
on the citywide parking review was being arranged for 1.30pm on 22 September. 
 
13.2 He asked if Members wished to accept an invitation to visit the Marina to look at long-term 
flood defence; Members welcomed this and asked for a suitable date to be arranged.  
 
14. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/ LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/REFERRALS FROM 

COMMITTEES/NOTICES OF MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 
14.1 There were none. 
 
15. REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY OF TAXIS FOR DISABLED PEOPLE 
 
15.1 The Chief Officer of the Brighton & Hove Federation of Disabled People (FED) Geraldine 
Des Moulins introduced the request for scrutiny. She said there had been problems in the City 
about fair access for disabled people to Wheelchair accessible vehicles  (WAVs) for a long 
time; since at least 1998. The FED did not advocate 100% accessible taxis but was working to 
increase the proportions of WAVs. That would be helpful both for the trade and for disabled 
residents and tourists, who often rely on taxis and private hire vehicles for independent 
everyday living. 
 
15.2 The FED preferred to work collaboratively, however they felt like a ‘lonely’ voice amongst 
influential voices and there were barriers working with the Licensing Department. All taxi users 
including disabled passengers ought to have more of a say about the service provision, she 
said.  
 
15.3 Efforts to work via the Licensing Committee had been exhausted and although taxi 
licensing was a complex area that Committee should be better briefed, in her opinion. Other 
Local Authority areas had made better progress, working proactively with disabled people, so 
why could that not happen in Brighton & Hove? 
 
15.4 The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing outlined policy development work that 
had been undertaken via the Licensing Committee as set out in the Appendix; most of the 
agreed actions were now complete. Further actions had been added more recently and new 
requests were to be considered. Progress against equalities issues were being monitored and 
reported to Licensing.  He told Members that nationally, some of the provisions of the Equality 
Act 2010 had not been introduced as timetabled and taxi licensing laws, widely considered 
arcane, were being reformed. There was no prescribed percentage or definition of WAVs. This 
was a difficult and complex area that did affect livelihoods and lives, he said. 
  
15.5 The FED’s Chief Officer strongly disagreed that significant actions had been completed 
and said it was unclear who was leading on implementing changes. She argued that much 
could be achieved by working together now, as elsewhere, rather than continually waiting for 
changes in the law. 
 

8



 

 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

5 SEPTEMBER 
2011 

15.6 Asked what Scrutiny could achieve, Geraldine Des Moulins stated that Licensing and taxi 
services could be influenced and improved if all the relevant stakeholders were listened to. 
 
15.7 A Member commented that the Licensing Committee was kept informed about increasing 
the number of WAVs and that key issues were discussed at the Taxi Forum before being taken 
to Licensing.  
 
15.8 In deciding on any action, the Committee wished to give Licensing Committee time to 
consider the matters raised in the June request for scrutiny and in additional information 
submitted by the FED in August. 
 
15.9 After discussion the Committee agreed to ask for a further report to 23 January 2011 
ECSOSC, to deal with the 6 bullet points listed in the request for scrutiny, plus additional 
concerns from the FED referred to in a separate note including: Engagement with all taxi 
service users; Disabled facilities for taxi pick-up at the football stadium; Information in the Blue 
Book about accessibility for disabled users; Openness and transparency of policy and practice 
on enforcement; eg suspension of licences/delay in related health checks;  Frequency and 
method of licence renewal; Value for Money of driver training course; Length/consistency of 
Hackney Carriage Office knowledge tests and reason for separate tests for Brighton and Hove; 
Data and record keeping eg on number of WAV licences, driver training, checks on equipment 
such as ramps and swivel chairs; Efficient work practices; Types of WAV that are acceptable 
for a licence application;  The High standard (and therefore cost) of the City’s taxi fleet,  
compared with competitiveness for key Council school and other contracts; and the Level of 
taxi service and waiting time for wheelchair users and disabled passengers. 
 
15.10 RESOLVED that a further report as minuted at 15.9 above be requested to 23 January 
ECSOSC and the Chair of Licensing Committee be invited to attend. 
 
16. MONITORING WINTER SERVICE PLAN SCRUTINY REVIEW 
 
16.1 The Head of Highway Operations introduced the report, pointing out the significant 
developments in service, communications with residents, and  joint working with partners  
since the severe weather events of winter 2009 – 2010.  
All the improvements were detailed in the Appendices. The scrutiny process had proved helpful 
in focussing the joint working on this and other  major incidents between key council service 
areas and with partners; and it was useful to bring to Council the various strands involved. 
Much had been achieved over more than a year.  More work on planning for winter weather 
with the business community was in hand. 
 
16.2 The Head of Operations answered questions on the limitations of both metal and the 
newer carbon fibre snow ploughs in an urban areas, and described from direct experience the 
various approaches to salting and ploughing at different times of day in different locations 
during a variety of weather conditions. Road widths, abandoned cars, speed bumps, pathways, 
cycle lanes, and slopes were some of the practical factors to be taken into account in tackling 
snow and ice. 
 
16.3 Seven new gritters using the latest technology (orange with stainless steel hoppers) were 
being delivered to cover six routes, allowing for a spare for emergencies or breakdown. The 
Head of Operations detailed all the technical advantages of each type of vehicle. This did not 

9



 

 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

5 SEPTEMBER 
2011 

involve unnecessary expenditure; it was a proportionate response to the difficulties 
encountered in 2009-2010, she said. 
 
16.4 The Head of Operations was widely congratulated on the ability of the team to be 
responsive and deal with extreme weather events and to learn actively from the feedback 
received. 
 
16.5 The Chair Councillor Warren Morgan who also chaired the Winter Service Plan Scrutiny 
Panel welcomed the report on behalf of the Committee and thanked the officers. Members 
agreed to ask for a report back if necessary, after winter 2011-2012 to the 26 March meeting. 
 
16.6 RESOLVED that a further monitoring report be provided to 26 March meeting only if 
necessary. 
 
17. GYPSIES AND TRAVELLERS: REQUESTS FOR SCRUTINY 
 
17.1 At the invitation of the Chair Councillor G Theobald introduced his request for scrutiny of 
protester encampments. He referred to disruption caused by an encampment at the Old Steine 
in May. Because environment, transport, tourism, and community safety lay within the remit of 
several Cabinet Members Councillor Theobald requested a scrutiny review into the matter. 
 
17.2 There was a question on the discussion at 6 June Cabinet (report paragraph 3.11 refers).  
 
17.3 In considering the request the Committee Members did not feel the matter required a 
scrutiny review; however an officer report was asked for, with an invitation to the 
Commissioner, Community Safety and the Police. 
 
17.4 Members also wished to invite Cllr Ben Duncan to speak to the Committee about policy in 
this area. 
 
17.5 Councillor Theobald turned to the remaining part of his letter, requesting scrutiny of policy 
on gypsies and travellers as set out in Appendix 1. Concerned residents had contacted him, in 
particular about incursions onto sensitive sites such as nature reserves. Councillor Theobald 
asked what was being done to prevent access, why did it sometimes take a long time to retain 
possession of land.  
 
17.6 Councillor Theobald questioned the number of gypsy and traveller families involved, 
whether numbers might increase, if appropriate notices were being served and the possible 
options and implications for permanent or other sites in future. He said other local authorities 
need to take action.  
 
17.7 He called for an independent, all-Party scrutiny review to consider these points and hear 
from traveller group representatives. The Brighton & Hove Environmental Action Group would 
be a potential witness. 
 
17.8 Councillor Liz Wakefield had submitted a request for scrutiny as part of the public 
consultation on suitable topics for investigation. She told the meeting in her direct experience, 
Gypsy Roma and Traveller (GRT) groups were often disadvantaged especially in provision of 
health, education and homes services, and on average had reduced life expectancy by 15 

10



 

 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

5 SEPTEMBER 
2011 

years. She said there was no reason why children of GRT families could not attain good 
grades and every child had a right to education. 
 
17.9 Councillor Wakefield said stereotypical views needed to be combated. The GRT 
community needed somewhere to live, and should be considered alongside the settled 
community. She said building bridges had been done elsewhere and asked that a scrutiny 
review be set up to look at how outreach work and services can be improved for gypsy roma 
and traveller groups in the City. 
 
17.10 The Chair Councillor Morgan reminded Members that a review of the 2008 Travellers 
Strategy had been agreed at 14 July Cabinet with a view to approval by March 2012, according 
to the timetable included in the report at Appendix 5. It was important that scrutiny added value 
and did not duplicate work already being done.                                                                                                                                 
. 
17.11 Members agreed that there was a lot of support for conducting a scrutiny review. Some 
felt that more could be done to improve relations between communities and a scrutiny would 
help dispel misconceptions. Witnesses could include academics as well as community 
representatives The process needed to be open and transparent. 
 
17.12 The Head of Scrutiny Tom Hook suggested that any scrutiny panel could be designed to 
be flexible enough to dovetail with the Cabinet commissioned review. 
 
17.13 Following discussion ECSOSC agreed to establish a Scrutiny Panel to be involved in the 
Cabinet review according to the draft timetable set out as Appendix 5 to the report, undertaking 
additional independent work only if necessary.  
 
17.14 RESOLVED 1) that a report on protest encampments as minuted above at 17.3 – 17.4 
be requested to a future meeting 
 
2) that a scrutiny review be established as minuted above at 17.13 
  
 
18. RENEWABLE ENERGY; RESPONSE FROM 14 JULY CABINET FOR INFORMATION 
 
18.1 The response to the recommendations of the scrutiny panel on renewable energy 
potential was included on the agenda for information. 
 
18.2 Members asked questions about One Planet Living, Photovoltaic solar panel procurement 
and the impact on conservation areas, plus the potential economic costs of energy efficiency.  
 
18.3 The Strategic Director Place said robust cost analysis was included in Cabinet decision-
making.  The scrutiny report and response would be reported to full council. 
 
18.4 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
19. REPORT BACK FROM THE ECSOSC FLOOD RISK WORKSHOP 
 
19. 1 Councillor Sykes outlined the 22 July ECSOSC flood risk workshop that he Chaired.  He 
told the meeting that the City was deemed to be at high risk from flooding events. The 
workshop had considered the analyses and looked for any gaps in available information.  

11



 

 

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

5 SEPTEMBER 
2011 

 
19.2 However some of the larger stakeholders did not seem to be fully engaged and this 
seemed to be a national issue. The workshop recommended that representation be made to 
DEFRA regarding Network Rail’s inadequate provision of information thus far.  Members 
agreed to this. 
 
19.3 The overall process for developing the larger Surface Water Management Plan would 
take until 2015;  a follow-up workshop could be added to the work plan if needed in due 
course. 
 
 
20. ECSOSC DRAFT WORK PLAN 
 
20.1 The Committee noted the draft work plan, that would also be considered at a ‘Tripartite’ 
meeting to be held soon between ECSOSC Chair, Cabinet Members and Strategic Director. 
The public consultation on scrutiny topics would be reported to the next meeting, 31 October. 
At present, a large proportion of suggestions fell within the remit of ECSOSC. 
 
21. ITEMS TO BE REFERRED TO CABINET MEMBER, CABINET OR FULL COUNCIL 
 
21.1 The meeting noted that the response to the recommendations of the Panel on renewable 
energy, would be reported to full Council. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 5.45pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

12



Agenda Item 24 

Notes for information: ECSOSC Informal Workshop: Citywide Parking Review 
1.30pm Thursday 22 September 2011. Hove Town Hall Committee Room 3 
 
Present: Councillors Warren Morgan (Chair) Ollie Sykes (Deputy Chair), Leo Littman, 
Denise Cobb, Tony Janio and Penny Gilbey 
 
Also present: Councillors Ian Davey and Garry Peltzer Dunn 
 

a) Councillor Warren Morgan ECSOSC Chair welcomed everyone to the workshop. 
 

b) The Project Manager Owen McElroy said this was a chance for scrutiny to ask 
questions and air innovative ideas on ways to improve parking management in the 
City. He gave a presentation on the Citywide Parking Review of both off-street and 
on-street parking with a historical summary of parking policy as it has evolved over 
the years, and the present situation. The 4 October Cabinet Member Meeting would 
be receiving a report on the consultation process. 

 
c) Currently there are 14 zones, including 2 ‘Light touch’ areas. There are specialised 

bays eg for disabled, loading, car club and police. 5 minutes’ waiting for loading is 
allowed on double-yellow lines where it is safe. Parking enforcement occurs 
between 7am and midnight.  

 
d) Consultations with residents are costly and there is now a tendency for proposals 

for new schemes to be rejected, though there are requests for schemes in roads 
adjoining existing zones where there has been displacement parking. Displacement 
is difficult to avoid. 

 
e) Stakeholders including residents, businesses and the bus/other travel companies 

are being invited to give their views and a programme of consultation including via 
the website was being developed to gauge public opinion and perceptions. This 
would include a postal and e-mail questionnaire. Partnerships would be involved 
and the outcomes of the consultation were scheduled to be reported in Autumn 
2012 with policy being implemented from 2013. 

 
f) The Project Manager explained the first priorities, in assessing requests for new or 

extended parking schemes were based on road safety and traffic congestion issues 
plus localities that had Member and Community support. 

 
g) The longer-term aim of the city wide review consultation was improved parking 

management which may potentially involve redesigning zones, boundaries, permits, 
charges or restrictions. 

 
h) Increasing sustainability, tackling pollution and the costs and income from parking 

would also be key considerations. 
 

i) Scrutiny comments and questions from this workshop would be taken forward in 
planning the consultation. Notes of the workshop would be reported to the next 
ECSOSC, 31 October 

 
j) Councillor Peltzer Dunn commented that on page 4 of the papers, West 

Hove/Portslade Station did not have a parking scheme. 
 

13



Agenda Item 24 

k) The Chair Councillor Warren Morgan said there was a need for a coherent 
consistent approach to parking across the City whilst at the same time, meeting 
local demands. He acknowledged it was difficult to balance the needs of local 
residents with the City’s requirements. This was a wide subject that included safety 
and environmental issues, car ownership and travel and behaviour patterns as well 
as costs of implementation. 

 
l) The Lead Commissioner, City Regulation and Infrastructure, Mark Prior told the 

workshop there would be scope for greater efficiency and cost reductions. 
Consistency of enforcement was another aim of the review. A system that was 
easier to understand – eg in terms of the times and types of parking restrictions - 
would be simpler to enforce. Generators of parking demand including businesses, 
stations, hospitals, GP surgeries and schools and ‘natural’ boundaries would have 
to be looked at in the context of the City as a whole. There was evidence locally of a 
shift towards walking and cycling and nationally of reduced car use, he said. 

 
m) It was notoriously difficult to get the geographical areas exactly right. The Lead 

Commissioner, City Regulation and Infrastructure said during a consultation he 
would typically hear from 30 – 40 residents per day, either for or against a proposed 
scheme. However, once a parking scheme was in place, he had not had a single 
request to remove it, he remarked. 

 
n) Members made comments and suggestions (officer comment in italics) : 

 
Citywide Issues 

1. Avoiding displacement parking was usually impossible to avoid (unless there 
are ‘natural’ boundaries eg railway lines) 
 

2. It was important to take into account views of people living in areas of 
displacement parking 
 

3. Would it be feasible to allow residents to buy a permit for inside an adjacent 
zone? 

 
4. Could there be changes to parking management across boundaries with 

adjoining Local Authorities? 
 

5. People may not disagree with paying to park in the centre of the City but may 
feel it’s unfair to pay to park outside their own door, although attitudes can 
depend on what is familiar 

 
6. A new scheme may generate complaints, but perceptions can change and 

schemes become accepted as people adjust  
 

7. When looking for a parking space it can be difficult to see/understand what 
the signs say/mean. 

 
8. Times are not always clear (restrictions are between 8am to 8pm, though 

some residents in the centre of the city comment they are unable to park 
even with a permit, and would like longer hours) 

 
9. There are parking areas that stand empty even at peak times of day (some 

14



Agenda Item 24 

spare capacity is used during the day eg by businesses) 
 

10. Would parking need to be self-financing in the same way in future? eg other 
sources of funding for new schemes perhaps via businesses who would 
benefit 

 
11. Could parking meters be withdrawn altogether? 

 
12. What experience from elsewhere could help in decision-making for the 

City? (officers are aware of good practices in other local authorities although 
not all are applicable here) 

 
13. Can technological developments be put to better use eg pay by phone 

using debit/credit card 
 

14.  To help reduce air pollution would it be feasible to charge for parking 
according to carbon emissions of the vehicle? 

 
15. How long can a vehicle wait on double yellow lines? ( 5 minutes) 

 
16. Where/when is parking allowed on pavements/verges? (this is enforceable 

where there are single or double yellow lines. Pipes beneath verges can get 
cracked. Local Authorities have powers to deal with pavement parking but 
this is expensive (signs and traffic orders) and there are no codes of practice 
to back these up.) 

 
17. Can the parking rules be publicised/made clearer in general?  

 
18. Would like to see better enforcement. Eg enforcement officers not often 

present around schools. Some PCSOs say ‘ there is nothing we can do’ 
(campaigns are used to try to change behaviour and the council works 
closely with headteachers and schools liaison officers. Where there is an 
obstruction, PCSOs can issue penalty charge notices.) 

 
19. Would like to see CCTV monitoring cameras but what about privacy? (Staff 

working with bus lane CCTV monitoring are NVQ/BTEC qualified) 
 

20. What is already known about people’s travelling habits, where and how 
they travel, internal commuting and the adequacy of parking availability. Has 
there been any modelling? 

 
21. Is congestion charging being investigated? (this would be expensive to 

introduce but all options can be considered) 
 

Local issues 
1. Preston Park; residents’ bays stand empty, only a few permits have been 

sold and business vehicles/vans have merely been displaced elsewhere. 
Would like scheme to be looked at again including the impact of 1 hour limits 
near Preston Park Station and 11-hour places in Preston Park Avenue. 

2. Brunswick and Adelaide: Enforcement is difficult for City Enforcement 
Officers; could CCTV cameras be used? (enforcement can be ‘cat and 

15



Agenda Item 24 

mouse’ or actually confrontational; also it can take a long time to write out a 
penalty notice. Cameras can be more effective in some circumstances eg to 
monitor bus lanes, loading bays and near schools and having a deterrent 
effect can lead to change of behaviour. The Council tries to be fair, eg to 
issue fewer tickets and ensure they are as robust as possible.) 

3. There is a mis-match between the interests of businesses (garages) and 
residents and ‘2-hour’ dispensations for broken down vehicles appear to be 
unenforceable. (This occurs in other areas such as Westbourne and typifies 
the tension between different users across the whole City. Similar issues for 
the night-time economy. Local adjustments can be made but that adds to 
complexity. A long-term resolution is being looked for) 

4. Residents of Hangleton and Knoll and other areas without parking schemes 
would not wish to pay for parking in their area and would perceive any 
such proposal to be for income generation only. 

 
5. Lowther Road: Would like to see better parking enforcement outside 

zones eg dangerous parking on road junctions where there are no double 
lines (City enforcement officers (CEOs) have finite capacity but the number 
of CEOs using scooters has recently been increased. Obstructions eg at a 
dropped kerb can be reported via 0845 6035469 (select option 3) or by email 
to ParkingEnforcement@brighton-hove.gov.uk. Additional double yellow lines 
can be added) 

 
6. Wilson Avenue: How can grass verges be protected from damage by parked 

cars without affecting drainage/surface run-off? 
 

o) Members asked about the existing lessons learned from schemes both in Brighton 
and Hove and elsewhere (for instance where ‘light touch’ zones had led to 
displacement).  It would be helpful for these to be summarised. 
 

p) The workshop agreed that the driver for parking arrangements should be transport 
policy rather than income generation; should cover the costs but be ‘revenue-
neutral.’ 
 

q) Councillor Cobb would contact officers with details of her suggestion to survey 
views on a Citywide Permit scheme at a nominal fee for residents only. 
 

r) Members who had further information to contribute to this stage of the process were 
asked to contact the officers via the scrutiny team. 

 
s) The Chair Councillor Warren Morgan thanked colleagues and officers and 

summarised the key issues for the consultation, to feed back to Cabinet Member: 
 
- Parking Enforcement especially around schools and including non-zoned areas 
- Clear information on parking rules in the City (yellow lines, driveways, pavements) 
- Costs of implementation of parking schemes 
- Alternative charging structures 
- Environmental impact (air pollution, drainage) 
- Analysis of existing situation and good practice in Brighton & Hove/other areas 
- Potential for use of new technology eg for payment, CCTV monitoring and 
enforcement. 

16



ENVIRONMENT AND 
COMMUNITY SAFETY 
OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 26 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Update on the Scrutiny Review of 20mph limits/zones 

Date of Meeting: 31 October 2011 

Report of: Lead Commissioner City Infrastructure 

Contact Officer: Name:  Phil Clarke 

Road Safety Manager 

Tel: 29-3705      

 E-mail: Philip.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE/ EXEMPTIONS  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

1.1 This report enables the Environment and Community Safety Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to monitor and track progress on the scrutiny 
recommendations on 20mph speed limits/zones. It will help the 
Committee to assess the impact and consequences of the scrutiny 
recommendations. The recommendations and update appears as 
appendix 1 to this report. 

 

1.2 The report also provides an update on the three pieces of work being 
undertaken in respect of 20 mph speed limits; the A&B Class Road 
Speed limit Review, the Non-A&B Class Road Speed Limit Review 
Pilot Study and the scoping exercise for a large central 20mph limit 
area within the City. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

(1) That Members note the summary of the two 4 October Cabinet 
Member reports on ‘Speed Limit Review, 20mph Limits’ and ‘Speed 
Limit Review (A&B Class Roads)’ 

 
(2) That Members consider the action taken against the recommendations 

of the Scrutiny review, and provide feedback. 
 
(3) That the Committee determines whether a further tracking report 

relating to this Scrutiny review is required. 
 
 

17



3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Scrutiny Review 

3.1 The Scrutiny Review of 20mph limits/zones was established by 
ECSOSC in September 2009 as it was considered a matter that needed in-
depth analysis and consideration. 

 

3.2 Chaired by Councillor Pete West, the cross-party panel consisted of 
Councillors Jayne Bennett, Gill Mitchell and Geoffrey Wells, and former 
Councillor David Watkins  

 

3.3 The Panel’s completed report was formally endorsed by ECSOSC 21 
June 2010 and referred to the Council’s Executive. 
 
3.4 The 23 September 2010 Environment CMM considered and agreed the 
actions in reply to the scrutiny report.  Full Council on 16 December 2010 
received both the Scrutiny report and cabinet response for noting. 
 
Monitoring Scrutiny Reviews 
3.5  The usual arrangements for monitoring the outcome of scrutiny 
recommendations are: 
 
a) The decision-makers, to whom the recommendations are addressed, 

are asked to submit a formal response to the recommendations normally 
within two months, including an action plan and timetable for 
implementation with named contact officers to action the 
recommendations. 

 
b) The report of the scrutiny review and response from the decision-makers 

are then reported together to full Council for information. 
 
c) The parent Overview and Scrutiny Committee normally receives a report 

of progress against the agreed recommendations, six months after the 
decisions are made. 

 
d) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will at that stage determine if any 

further monitoring is required; whether a progress report is required after 
a further six months or one year. Otherwise the Committee may resolve 
that no more monitoring is necessary. 

 

3.6 A summary of the Scrutiny Recommendations and replies plus progress 
in implementation appears at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

Update on current work on 20mph speed limits 

3.7 Speed Limit Review (A&B Class Roads) recommended several 
amendments of the speed limits on various stretches of A&B class roads, 
including a reduction from 30mph to 20mph on Nevill Road, Hove and 
Trafalgar Road/Church Road, Portslade. At the CMM on 4 October 2011 
permission to consult on implementing some of these recommendations was 
obtained. These proposed changes are intended to increase safety within the 
vicinity of schools and should be implemented, subject to the consultation 
within this financial year.  

18



 

3.8 Speed Limit Review, 20mph Speed Limits recommended 3 pilot 
20mph areas encompassing schools and the surrounding residential roads. 
Permission to consult in respect of two of these areas was granted at CMM on 
4 October. These were the schemes in Portslade and the Stanford area. The 
third scheme in the vicinity of Saltdean Primary School was considered too 
small and unlikely to be of great benefit as a small isolated 20mph area. 

The pilot areas are intended to provide an opportunity to trial the use of 
various materials, signing, surface treatments etc. in order to inform decisions 
when implementing further schemes in the future. In the longer term they will 
provide information on their effectiveness in terms of affect on speed, road 
safety and traffic flow/displacement effect. Once again, subject to 
consultation, these measures should be implemented during this financial 
year. 

The cost of implementing these pilot areas is likely to be approx £80k funded 
from LTP3.  

 

3.9 The scoping exercise for a large central 20mph limit area within 
the City is looking at the feasibility of introducing larger 20mph limit areas 
including assessing costs. The initial research will be in respect of creating a 
substantial City centre 20mph limit, with a view to incrementally extending it 
take in more of the City’s residential and commercial areas. This exercise 
takes into account the Environment and Community Safety Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee’s recommendations, including recommendation 13 ‘That 
20mph areas are identified as quickly as possible and that adequate funding 
is prioritised and set aside for implementing these initiatives as part of the 
Local Transport Plan (3)’. It is anticipated that the scoping work can be 
completed during this financial year. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

4.1 Over a period of around 6 months the scrutiny panel spoke with 
representatives from a wide range of organisations to gather evidence and 
opinion on 20 mph speed limits/zones. The Panel visited Portsmouth City 
Council, another local authority to gather information. 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

Financial Implications: 

5.1 There is a budget of £330,000 set aside for Road Safety Schemes within the 
Local Transport Plan capital allocation for 2011-12. This will be used to cover the 
costs of consultation and implementation.  

 

Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw       Date: 31/05/2011 

 

The work on all the A&B Road reductions will cost approximately £20k, 
although the cost of the 20mph element will be a fraction of the overall costs 
involved. Example costs include: 

An entry point to the 20 mph limit will cost approx £1k (signs and posts £634, 
surfacing treatment £330, lining/roundels £80) and repeater signs £27, 

19



although the number of repeater signs required will depend upon the length of 
road in question.  

The overall cost of the pilot areas in Portslade and Stanford will be approx 
£80k. 

 

Legal Implications: 

5.2 The Council has the power under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
to make Traffic Regulation Orders relating to speed limits. The appropriate 
statutory procedures regarding advertisement and consultation must be 
followed. 
 
The measures set out in the report are consistent with the Council’s statutory 
duties to promote road safety and prevent accidents. 
 

Legal Officer consulted: Carl Hearsum     Date: 1 June 2011 

 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 There are no direct equalities implications 

 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 None 

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5 None 

 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 The report contains no risks and supports the recommendations of the 
Scrutiny panel. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 None 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 

1. Recommendations of the 20 mph speed limits/zones Scrutiny Review, the 
CMM response and progress against the recommendations. 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 

1. Speed Limit Review A&B Class Roads 

2. Speed Limit Review, 20mph Speed Limits 

 

Background Documents 

1. Report and Recommendations of the Environment and Community Safety 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

20



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 2
6
  
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

  

R
e
c
  

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
 a
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 4
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
M
M
  

D
a
te
 

U
p
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
E
C
S
O
S
C
 

2
0
1
1
 

 1
 

  T
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 

p
o
li
c
y
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 

li
m
it
s
 o
n
 r
o
a
d
s
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 f
o
r 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 

ro
a
d
s
 w
h
e
re
 h
ig
h
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
o
a
d
s
 u
s
e
rs
 u
s
e
 

th
e
 r
o
a
d
s
; 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 

ro
a
d
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
ro
u
te
s
 

to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
ro
a
d
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 p
la
y
g
ro
u
n
d
s
, 

s
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
, 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 

s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 b
u
s
y
 

s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 a
re
a
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

w
o
rk
 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 

s
u
c
h
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
p
e
e
d
 
L
im
it
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 
c
re
a
te
 
c
lu
s
te
r 
s
it
e
s
 

w
ill
 
b
e
 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 
it
 
is
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 
b
e
 
a
 

d
e
fa
u
lt
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

2
0
m
p
h
 

lim
it
s
/z
o
n
e
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

v
ic
in
it
y
 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
th
a
t 

n
o
t 

lo
c
a
te
d
 
o
n
 
s
p
in
a
l 
o
r 

a
rt
e
ri
a
l 

ro
u
te
s
. 

 

 A
t 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 (
C
M
M
) 
o
n
 1
6
th
 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 t
h
e
 

 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 p
a
n
e
l’s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
C
M
M
 R
e
p
o
rt
  

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
ri
m
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
w
id
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 

 t
h
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
C
M
M
. 
 

 T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 

 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
  

d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 

 p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
w
id
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 

 l
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
, 

 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 g
iv
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
f 

 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 T
h
e
 R
o
a
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
in
g
 

 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 d
a
ta
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 

 O
n
g
o
in
g
 b
u
t 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
v
e
 

ju
s
t 
b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

C
M
M
 4
/1
0
/1
1
 

(s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

C
M
M
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
) 

 T
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
M
M
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 b
u
t 
w
a
s
 

d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
J
u
ly
 a
n
d
 

a
g
a
in
 d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

M
a
y
 e
le
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
C
M
M
 o
n
 4

th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

 T
h
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

(n
o
n
 A
&
B
 C
la
s
s
 r
o
a
d
s
) 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
e
rt
in
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
s
 h
a
s
 

c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
ts
 p
ilo
t 
s
tu
d
y
 

in
to
 3
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 
th
e
 

m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 

to
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
: 

 1
. 
E
a
s
te
rn
 A
re
a
 –
 S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

2
. 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
A
re
a
 –
 S
ta
n
fo
rd
 

In
fa
n
t/
J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 a
re
a
 

3
. 
W
e
s
te
rn
 A
re
a
 –
 P
e
te
r 

G
la
d
w
in
 P
ri
m
a
ry
, 
S
t 

N
ic
h
o
la
s
 J
u
n
io
r 
a
n
d
 

P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 I
n
fa
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

21



 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ic
in
it
y
, 

 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 

 t
h
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
. 

 T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ta
in
 

a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 a
n
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
M
M
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
1
 

 T
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 

z
o
n
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

o
n
 a
 d
a
ta
 l
e
d
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 

a
n
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
p
e
e
d
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
w
id
e
r 

u
s
e
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
s
 a
n
d
 z
o
n
e
s
, 

o
n
 t
h
is
 b
a
s
is
. 

 
B
y
 a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 a
 d
a
ta
-l
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
, 

ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

th
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

a
ls
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
 a
n
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 w
a
y
. 

 

 A
t 
th
e
 C
M
M
 o
n
 4

th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
(C
llr
 

D
a
v
e
y
) 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
re
a
s
 2
 &
 

3
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 h
e
 f
e
lt
 a
re
a
 1
 

w
a
s
 t
o
o
 s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
d
 

to
o
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 
a
 p
o
c
k
e
t 
a
n
d
 

u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 

th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 (
A
&
B
 C
la
s
s
 r
o
a
d
s
) 

a
ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 2
0
 m

p
h
 l
im
it
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 

th
e
 s
a
m
e
 C
M
M
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

4
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
  
In
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

g
ra
n
te
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s
 

fr
o
m
 3
0
 t
o
 2
0
m
p
h
 o
n
 N
e
v
ill
 

R
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
f 
H
o
v
e
 

P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 B
la
tc
h
in
g
to
n
 M

ill
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 a
lo
n
g
 T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 

R
d
 a
n
d
 C
h
u
rc
h
 R
d
 

P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
f 

S
t 
M
a
ry
’s
 R
C
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l.
 T
h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 

R
o
u
te
s
 t
o
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
. 

 

22



     

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 –
 

C
llr
 D
a
v
e
y
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 R
o
a
d
 

S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 

d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ti
n
g
 a
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
2
0
m
p
h
 s
p
e
e
d
 

lim
it
 a
re
a
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 a
rt
e
ri
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

O
ld
 S
h
o
re
h
a
m
 R
d
, 
A
2
5
9
 

e
tc
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 a
v
o
id
 a
 

p
ie
c
e
m
e
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 l
im
it
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 
 

2
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
p
e
e
d
s
 o
n
 C
 

a
n
d
 U
n
c
la
s
s
if
ie
d
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
o
a
d
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m
 2
0
 m
p
h
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s
 a
s
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
p
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 2
4
 m
p
h
 o
r 

le
s
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 t
h
o
s
e
 

ro
a
d
s
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
ju
s
t 
a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 a
s
 

o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

c
a
lm
in
g
 i
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 

a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
. 

 

 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 2
 b
e
 

c
lu
s
te
re
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 f
o
rm
 

c
o
h
e
re
n
t 
2
0
 m
p
h
 a
re
a
s
. 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 o
n
c
e
 b
o
th
 p
ie
c
e
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 m

a
tc
h
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 l
is
ts
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
fa
u
lt
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
a
s
 

p
e
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
) 

 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

23



4
 

T
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 

th
e
 w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 c
lu
s
te
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 

a
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 

in
fo
rm

 L
T
P
3
 w
h
e
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
. 

 

 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

T
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
M
M
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 b
u
t 
w
a
s
 

d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
J
u
ly
 a
n
d
 

a
g
a
in
 d
e
fe
rr
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

M
a
y
 e
le
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
C
M
M
 o
n
 4

th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

5
 

T
h
a
t 
w
h
e
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 2
0
 m
p
h
 

a
re
a
s
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
tr
a
ff
ic
 c
a
lm
in
g
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
s
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
d
e
a
ll
y
 n
o
t 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
p
e
e
d
 

b
u
m
p
s
 o
r 
h
u
m
p
s
 b
u
t 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 d
e
s
ig
n
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a
s
. 

 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 c
a
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
s
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
A
ll 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
s
t 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 
d
e
s
ig
n
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
fo
r 
S
tr
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
a
p
e
 D
e
s
ig
n
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 

th
e
 ‘
b
u
ild
’ 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

6
 

T
h
a
t 
e
a
s
il
y
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
a
b
le
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
2
0
 m
p
h
 a
re
a
s
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c
a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 

s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
e
d
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 f
ir
s
t.
 

 

T
h
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 r
o
a
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 

m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 u
s
e
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

 

 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

24



7
 

T
h
a
t 
ta
k
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
o
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
, 
2
 a
n
d
 3
, 

m
a
in
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

lo
o
k
 a
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
t 

o
th
e
r 
ro
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

th
e
s
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 s
a
fe
r 
fo
r 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
o
a
d
 u
s
e
rs
. 
In
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
f 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
b
e
in
g
 u
n
a
b
le
 

to
 c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
ro
a
d
s
 

s
a
fe
ly
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
s
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
tl
y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
w
h
ic
h
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
t 
C
M
M
 

o
n
 2
6
th
 m

a
y
 2
0
1
1
 w
ill
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
is
 m

a
tt
e
r 
to
 b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

8
 

T
h
a
t 
a
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
re
 m
e
t,
 

m
o
re
 c
ro
s
s
in
g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
, 
z
e
b
ra
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
o
a
d
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 

c
ro
s
s
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
re
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 2
0
 m
p
h
 

a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 m
a
in
 b
u
s
y
 

ro
a
d
s
. 

 

A
s
 p
e
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 7
 

 

 
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
t 
C
M
M
 

o
n
 2
6
th
 m

a
y
 2
0
1
1
 w
ill
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
is
 m

a
tt
e
r 
to
 b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

9
 

T
h
a
t 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
n
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 2
0
 m
p
h
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

L
A
T
s
 e
tc
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.A
n
y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
 w
o
u
ld
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te
 a
 T
ra
ff
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 

O
rd
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
. 
 

 

 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

25



1
0
 

T
h
a
t,
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
y
-i
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
x
im
u
m
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
y
, 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
n
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 2
0
 m
p
h
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

in
to
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

A
s
 p
e
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9
 

 

 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

1
1
 

T
h
a
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
, 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 

a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 a
re
 

a
ls
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
t 

k
e
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
lo
w
e
r 

s
p
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
r 
d
ri
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 

ro
a
d
 u
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 R
o
a
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
s
 a
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
o
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 

ro
a
d
 u
s
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
s
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 o
r 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
p
e
e
d
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
a
t 
w
o
rk
. 
T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 ‘
s
p
e
e
d
in
g
’ 
a
s
 s
o
c
ia
lly
 

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 a
s
 d
ri
n
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
ri
v
in
g
. 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic
it
y
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

ro
le
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
a
rd
e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

s
p
e
e
d
 l
im
it
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 c
a
lm
in
g
. 

A
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 

a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
. 

 

 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

  

26



1
2
 

T
h

a
t 
a
 c
a
re
fu
ll
y
 p
la
n
n
e
d
, 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 

p
la
c
e
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
g
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
y
-i
n
, 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
. 

 

A
g
re
e
d
 -
 D
a
ta
 p
re
c
e
d
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
a
th
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
‘b
e
fo
re
 a
n
d
 a
ft
e
r’
 

c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 d
a
ta
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
. 
 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
h
o
ro
u
g
h
 b
e
fo
re
 a
n
d
 a
ft
e
r 

d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
s
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

1
3
 

T
h
a
t 
2
0
 m
p
h
 a
re
a
s
 a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
t 

a
s
id
e
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 (
3
).
 

 

T
h
e
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
 R
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
2
0
m
p
h
 s
p
e
e
d
 

lim
it
s
/z
o
n
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 

a
s
 a
n
 i
te
m
 f
o
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 w
it
h
in
 

L
T
P
3
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

S
e
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 –
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

1
4
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
rs
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 

th
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
ft
e
r 
s
ix
 

m
o
n
th
s
 

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
, 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 

v
ia
b
le
 d
a
te
 f
o
r 
a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 –
 6
 m

o
n
th
s
 

fr
o
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
C
M
M
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

U
p
d
a
te
 w
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
t 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 C
M
M
 

27



1
5
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
il
it
y
 o
f 
p
il
o
ti
n
g
 

in
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
re
a
, 
n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

s
p
e
e
d
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 ‘
g
re
e
n
 l
ig
h
t 

w
a
v
e
’ 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

fo
rm
s
 o
f 
s
m
a
rt
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

 

W
h
ils
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 s
p
e
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
o
n
e
 o
n
 a
 c
a
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
s
e
 b
a
s
is
 

a
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
s
 e
tc
 w
ill
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
it
a
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

p
ilo
ti
n
g
 a
n
y
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
. 
G
re
e
n
 w
a
v
e
s
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
it
ie
s
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 a
t 
p
re
d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

s
p
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 a
 f
a
m
ili
a
r 
c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
in
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

in
 u
s
e
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

c
it
ie
s
 f
ir
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
o
n
 a
 r
e
d
 l
ig
h
t 

c
a
ll 
th
e
 f
ir
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
h
o
o
s
e
s
 a
 

ro
u
te
 v
ia
 a
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 

th
is
 t
ri
g
g
e
rs
 a
 g
re
e
n
 w
a
v
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
ff
ic
 s
ig
n
a
ls
 

a
lo
n
g
 t
h
is
 r
o
u
te
 t
o
 c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ir
e
 e
n
g
in
e
. 

 A
n
o
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

to
 u
s
e
 a
 g
re
e
n
 w
a
v
e
 a
lo
n
g
 a
 

m
a
jo
r 
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
o
u
te
 (
L
e
w
e
s
 R
d
) 

w
it
h
 a
n
 a
c
tu
a
l 
g
re
e
n
 w
a
v
e
 o
f 

lig
h
ts
 b
u
ri
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 

ill
u
s
tr
a
te
 a
 g
re
e
n
 w
a
v
e
 t
h
a
t 

a
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
 c
y
c
lis
ts
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 a
t 
a
 

c
o
m
fo
rt
a
b
le
 p
a
c
e
 (
1
2
-

1
5
m
p
h
)a
n
d
 r
e
a
c
h
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

tr
a
ff
ic
 s
ig
n
a
ls
 w
h
ils
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 o
n
 

g
re
e
n
. 

 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

A
n
y
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 

s
ig
n
a
ls
 w
o
rk
 n
o
w
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 ‘
s
m
a
rt
e
r’
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 a
p
p
lie
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
‘P
u
ff
in
’ 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
fa
u
lt
 l
ig
h
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
 t
y
p
e
. 

  

28



A
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 

tr
a
ff
ic
 s
ig
n
a
l 
ti
m
in
g
s
 a
re
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 

th
e
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 l
o
g
 i
t 
ta
k
e
s
 t
o
 

g
e
t 
fr
o
m
 o
n
e
 s
e
t 
o
f 
lig
h
ts
 t
o
 

a
n
o
th
e
r.
 I
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
lw
a
y
s
 b
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 t
h
is
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 

s
e
t 
th
e
 t
im
in
g
s
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 

tr
a
ff
ic
 s
p
e
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 a
re
 

lo
o
k
in
g
 f
o
r.
  

 

29



30



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 
SAFETY OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 27 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Permission to tender for supported bus network 

Date of Meeting: Environment Transport and Sustainability CMM 
4 October 2011 (Item 38) 
ECSOSC 31 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name: Nick Mitchell Tel: 29-2481 

 Email: nick.Mitchell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
This CMM report, plus the consultation responses (Appendix 3)  is being 
presented with a verbal update to ECSOSC, for information. 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 Under the 1985 Transport Act, local authorities are empowered to contract with 

bus operators for the provision of bus services which meet the needs of the 
general public, but which are not provided commercially. 

 
1.2 The current batch of contracts was let following an Area Network Review carried 

out during 2007/8.  These contracts expire in September 2012 and due to the 
value of the contracts, if they are retendered, the process will be governed by the 
EU procurement rules. 

 
1.3  The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet Member approval to go out to 

competitive tender for the supported bus network contracts to commence in 
September 2012. This tendering exercise follows the Area Network Review in 
July & August 2011 which involved a full consultation process with elected 
members, user groups, and community groups and data assimilated from 
request made by members of the public.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Transport & Public Realm authorises the 

competitive tendering process to begin based on the proposed routes contained 
in Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 That a report be brought to a future Environment, Transport & Sustainability 

Cabinet Members Meeting for consideration once tenders from prospective 
contractors have been analysed and recommendations for the future Supported 
Local Bus Network have been formulated. 

 
 
 

31



 
 
 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 Using powers under the Transport Act 1985, the City Council contracts with bus 

operators, following a competitive tendering exercise, for the provision of bus 
services which are necessary to meet the needs of the community, but which are 
not provided commercially.  The current batch of contracts was let in September 
2008, and expires in September 2012. 

 
3.2 The current supported bus network comprises of a number of complete routes 

and the extension of some commercial routes to operate during the evening or at 
weekends, and some diversions of commercial routes to serve particular 
communities.  This includes services: 

 
Route Route description 

16/66 
Mon – Sat. Portslade – Knoll Estate – Hangleton – Sainsbury 
(66 only) 

21 Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Marina 

47 Mon - Sat. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

52 
Mon - Sat. Woodingdean -Brighton Station/ Cardinal Newman 
School 

56 Mon - Sat. Knoll Estate - Patcham 

57 Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

37B 
Mon - Sat. Bristol Estate - Kemp Town - City Centre - 
Meadowview 

74 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

75 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

76 School Days only. Saltdean Vale - Longhill School 

76A School Days only. Peacehaven - Longhill School 

81 Mon - Sat eves. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

81A Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

81A Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

81B Suns & Public Holidays. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

95 School Days only. Burwash Road - Cardinal Newman School 

95A School Days only. Foredown Drive - Cardinal Newman School 

96 
School Days only. Carden Avenue - Blatchington Mill & Hove 
Park Lower Schools 

91 
School Days only. Coombe Road - Hollingdean - Cardinal 
Newman School 

32



3.3 The proposal to let new contracts in 2012 follows an “Area Network Review” by 
the City Council. This consisted of the consultation process outlined below, 
together with a detailed analysis of the current commercial network, to identify 
any missing links or new services. At the same time a review was undertaken of 
those requests made by passengers for changes to routes, timetables and times 
of operation. 

 
3.4 A proposed timetable for the process from consultation & Area Network Review 

through pre qualification questionnaire, tendering, contract awarding & start of 
contracts is shown in appendix 1. 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The City Council’s Public Transport Team maintains a database of consultees on 

matters relating to public transport.  There are 380 entries on this list, comprising 
resident’s associations, community groups, affinity groups, ward councillors, 
MPs, and user groups.  The input from these groups has been sought to inform 
the Area Network Review. The consultation period lasted from 20 July 2011 to 09 
September 2011. 

 
4.2 The City Council has received responses from around 100 individuals to the 

consultation document and these responses have informed the Area Network 
Review. The comments in the consultation replies, which were received by e-
mail, telephone and by council officers at public meetings, were extremely varied, 
with reference made both to individual bus services and on the supported bus 
network as a whole. The consultation responses are held in the Documents in 
Members’ Rooms.  

 
4.3 The Council has an adopted methodology that is then applied to the current 

supported network and any requests for new routes. This methodology consists 
of a weighted scoring criteria to help ensure that supported bus routes meet the 
needs of the user and provide best value to the Council and the wider 
community.  

 
4.4 The methodology contains a range of criteria including historic services, cost per 

passenger, journey purpose, external funding used and interchange points on 
route. The scoring methodology sheet & criteria used are attached in appendix 2. 

 
4.5 The City Council has liaised with all commercial bus operators serving the City, in 

order to ensure that the supported bus network supplements and enhances the 
commercial network, to provide the best possible journey options for residents and 
visitors and to ensure the Council does not duplicate or support any commercially 
viable routes. 

 
4.6 Next steps.  
  

It is proposed that the tenders will go out in November 2011 and be returned in 
early January 2012. We will make clear in the contract documentation that the 
outcome of the tendering process is dependent on the council having the 
necessary resources to support all or any of the proposed routes, and that the 
invitation to tender does not guarantee that contracts will be let. The tender prices 
will then be analysed and evaluated in January 2012. Once the tenders have been 

33



assessed the options for awarding contracts will be brought forward to a future 
Cabinet Member Meeting in March 2012 for consideration. Any future 
considerations on what routes are supported by the Council will need to be mindful 
of budget constraints. Contract award letters will be issued once final decisions 
have been taken. The new contracts will start in September 2012.  

   
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs of preparing the Area Network Review have been met out of existing 

Public Transport revenue budgets. The extent of any future Supported Bus 
Network will be totally dependent upon the revenue budget available at the time.  
A further report will be brought to Cabinet Members Meeting for approval after 
the completed tenders have been analysed and officers’ recommendations 
made, based on ranking the services by importance in a number of categories. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 16/09/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 Under section 63 of the Transport Act 1985, the Council has a duty to provide 

subsidised bus services in part or parts of its areas where there are no 
commercial services and where it thinks it appropriate for such services to be 
provided. Services are tendered and let to commercial operators in return for 
payment from the Council. The powers of local authorities to subsidise public 
passenger transport services are subject to detailed tendering provisions laid 
down in the 1985 Act, Regulations made under the 1985 Act, and (where 
contracts exceed specified thresholds) in the EU procurement rules. 

 
5.3  In deciding which services to provide, the Council is required to have regard to 

the transport needs of members of the public who are elderly or disabled; and 
when entering into agreements for bus subsidies, to have regard to the interests 
of the public and of persons providing public passenger services in the Brighton 
& Hove area. Due consideration of these factors would be required before any 
decision to amend or withdraw subsidised services. 

  
 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date: 19/09/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.4 The City Council’s consultation database includes representatives of minority 

communities, to ensure that the needs of these communities are taken into 
account in planning the future supported bus network.  The City Council’s 
contracts specify that vehicles must be wheelchair accessible, in support of the 
City Council’s Equalities Policies, and the City Council’s obligations under the 
Disability Discrimination Act and the Equalities Act 2010. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.5 The City Council’s contract documents specify minimum exhaust emission 

standards for vehicles.  For the current contracts the minimum specified is EURO 

34



3.  For the new contracts the anticipated minimum exhaust emission standards 
will be EURO 4 (or equivalent), in support of the City Council’s Air Quality Action 
Plan. The emissions from engines run on recycled cooking oil are below the 
limits set for Euro 4 engines or equivalent. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.6 It is not considered that there are any Crime & Disorder implications associated 

with the proposed competitive tendering exercise. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.7 It is considered that there is a Risk that the City Council will not be able to let all 

the contracts that are tendered due to the high rise in fuel costs since the 
contracts were last put out to tender in September 2008. 

 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.8 It is not considered that there are any Public Health implications associated with 

the proposed competitive tendering exercise. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.9 The consultation exercise was citywide, and will inform the future corporate 

strategy for the supported bus service network. 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 The Council does not have an in-house bus fleet to support the requirements of 

operating the supported bus network. In order to set up such an operation there 
would need to be a full evaluation of the legal, practical and financial issues.  It is 
possible, but unlikely, that such an arrangement could deliver a similarly priced 
service to that which the Council has been receiving through contracting.  
However it should be noted that this option would require the provision of 
significant capital investment, additional HR, finance and payroll support beyond 
the service itself.  There would also be a need for more direct involvement in day 
to day management and staff management rather than monitoring of the contract 
as at present. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To ensure that a suitable supported bus network procured by competitive 

tendering is available throughout the City. 
 
7.2 To secure the most cost effective supported bus network across the whole City.  

 
 
 

35



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Procurement timeline 
 
2. Contract tenders scoring methodology & criteria (3 sheets in total) 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
Consultation responses 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 

36



Item 27 Appendix 1

Project

Tender Reference

Procurement Lead

Negotiating Team

Contract Term

Contract Value

Benefits sought

Works/Services/Supply

TUPE Consultation Period

Other Comments

ACTION Duration (Days) Personnel Proposed Day of Week Shortened Actual

Funding Approval 1 Client  in advance

Define Project Team 1
Procurement, 

Stakeholder,Finance Legal
24/05/11 Tue  

Define Requirements 1 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

TUPE - Does this apply  ? 0 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

Draft Project Timetable 0 Client/Procurement 25/05/11 Wed

Define Tender Procedure 1 Procurement 26/05/11 Thu

Copy of Current Contract Obtained 7 Procurement 02/06/11 Thu

Develop Advert & PQQ 14 Client/Procurement 16/06/11 Thu

Area Network Review / Meeting Bus 

Operators
21 Client 07/07/11 Thu

CMM 1 Client 07/07/11 Thu

Place Advert  1 Procurement 18/08/11 Thu

Closing date of  Advert/PQQ 42 Procurement 29/09/11 Thu

Evaluation of PQQ 28 Procurement / Team 27/10/11 Thu

PQQ Financials to Finance 7 Procurement 03/11/11 Thu

Specification to be drafted 6 Client/Procurement 09/11/11 Wed

Prepare draft tender 1 Procurement 10/11/11 Thu

Develop Evaluation Criteria 1 Client/Procurement 11/11/11 Fri

Seek Client & Legal approval of ITT 5 Procurement 16/11/11 Wed

Tender issued 1 Procurement 17/11/11 Thu

Letter to unsuccessful PQQ respondents 1 Procurement 18/11/11 Fri

Tender return date 49 Procurement 06/01/12 Fri

Tenders opened 0 Procurement 06/01/12 Fri

Schedule of Offers & distribute to Project 

Team for evaluation
42 Procurement 17/02/12 Fri

Evaluation Meeting 3 Client/Procurement 20/02/12 Mon

Supplier Presentation 1 Client/Procurement 21/02/12 Tue

Post Tender Clarification 14 Procurement / Team 06/03/12 Tue

Cost Analysis 7 Procurement / Client 13/03/12 Tue

CMM 1 Client 27/03/12 Tue

Award Letters / Rejection letters issued 1 Procurement 28/03/12 Wed

Mandatory standstill period 10 Procurement 09/04/12 Mon

Debriefs (if requested) 3 Procurement 12/04/12 Thu

Issue of order/contract, acceptance letter & 

promotion of contract (if applicable)
1 Procurement 13/04/12 Fri

OJEU Award Notice 7 Procurement 16/04/12 Mon

Complete Evaluation Report 0 Procurement 16/04/12 Mon

Contract Start Date 56 Client 05/09/12 Wed

Project timetable produced by

Procurement Project Plan

not applicable

Sharon Stewart

Nick Mitchell

Supported Bus Routes

Sharon Stewart

Sharon Stewart

Action Date

4 years

£870k per annum

improved service, sustainability element, costs savings

services

37



38



It
e
m
 2
7
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

P
u
b
li
c
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
e
n
d
e
r

H
is
to
ri
c
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
s
t 
p
e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn
e
y
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g

In
te
rc
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
o
in
ts
 o
n
 

ro
u
te

T
O
T
A
L

S
C
O
R
IN
G
 S
H
E
E
T
. 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

R
o
u
te

R
o
u
te
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

M
a
x
 5
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 4
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 1
0
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
3
 p
o
in
ts

4
7

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

1
2

2
2

5
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
2

2
1

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
/ 
C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
2

2
1

1
6
/6
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 -
 S
a
in
s
b
u
ry

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

1
0

0
1

2
0

3
7
B

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 K
e
m
p
 T
o
w
n
 -
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
2

1
0

0
2

1
9

8
1
C

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 -
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1
A

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1
A

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

8
1

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 -
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

6
0

2
1
7

5
7

S
u
n
s
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 H
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

6
1

2
1
7

2
1

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
e
v
e
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 M
a
ri
n
a

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

6
0

2
1
6

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 F
a
lm
e
r

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

2
2

1
0

0
2

1
6

7
8

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 S
ta
n
m
e
r 
P
a
rk
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
M
o
rn
in
g
 &
 E
v
e
n
in
g
 p
e
a
k
s
 

p
lu
s
 l
u
n
c
h
ti
m
e
s

N
e
w

2
0

1
0

1
2

1
5

8
4

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
 t
o
 A
2
5
9

N
e
w

2
0

8
1

1
1
2

5
2

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
o
o
d
in
g
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

0
0

1
0

1
1

1
2

4
7

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
rr
e
n
t

0
0

1
0

1
1

1
2

3
9

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 F
iv
e
w
a
y
s
 -
 H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 L
e
w
e
s
 

R
o
a
d
. 

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
2

1
2

1
3

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 -
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 

H
o
v
e

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
2

1
2

39



It
e
m
 2
7
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2

P
u
b
li
c
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
e
n
d
e
r

H
is
to
ri
c
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
s
t 
p
e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn
e
y
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g

In
te
rc
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
o
in
ts
 o
n
 

ro
u
te

T
O
T
A
L

S
C
O
R
IN
G
 S
H
E
E
T
. 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

R
o
u
te

R
o
u
te
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

M
a
x
 5
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 4
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 1
0
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
 

p
o
in
ts

M
a
x
 2
3
 p
o
in
ts

9
5
A

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
F
o
re
d
o
w
n
 D
ri
v
e
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l
C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

2
0

0
1
1

7
6
A

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
P
e
a
c
e
h
a
v
e
n
 -
 L
o
n
g
h
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
1

0
1
1

7
6

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 V
a
le
 -
 L
o
n
g
h
ill
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
4

2
0

0
1
1

2
3

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s

N
e
w

2
0

8
0

1
1
1

2
3

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 -
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s

N
e
w

2
0

8
0

1
1
1

1
5

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 T
ra
fa
lg
a
r 

R
o
a
d
 -
 K
in
g
s
w
a
y
 -
 N
e
w
 C
h
u
rc
h
 R
o
a
d

N
e
w

0
0

1
0

0
1

1
1

9
6

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
C
a
rd
e
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 -
 B
la
tc
h
in
g
to
n
 M
ill
 &
 H
o
v
e
 

P
a
rk
 L
o
w
e
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

9
5

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
B
u
rw
a
s
h
 R
o
a
d
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l
C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

7
5

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

7
4

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

5
3

2
0

0
1
0

5
7

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
6

S
u
n
d
a
y
. 
K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 P
a
tc
h
a
m

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
2

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

5
2

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

2
1
0

3
5

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t 
o
ff
 p
e
a
k
. 
W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 -
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 -
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 s
h
o
p
s

N
e
w

0
0

8
0

1
9

1
6

S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

1
9

1
6

E
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 -
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 -
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n

N
e
w

2
0

6
0

1
9

3
6

M
o
n
 -
 S
a
t.
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 v
ia
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
 (
T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll)

N
e
w

0
0

6
0

1
7

9
1

S
c
h
o
o
l 
D
a
y
s
 o
n
ly
. 
C
o
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 

N
e
w
m
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l

C
u
rr
e
n
t

4
1

2
0

0
7

40



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 2
7
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
  

 
B
u
s
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 R
e
v
ie
w
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
1
 

    

S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

N
O
 

C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S
 

F
R
O
M
 

N
A
T
U
R
E
 O
F
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
 

2
5
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
p
e
a
k
 t
im
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 a
n
d
 R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
, 
fo
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 t
ra
v
e
lli
n
g
 t
o
 F
a
lm
e
r 
c
a
m
p
u
s
e
s
. 

8
4
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

‘P
le
a
s
e
 a
d
d
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 8
4
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 f
ro
m
 F
a
lm
e
r 
a
ro
u
n
d
 5
.3
0
p
m
 (
o
r 
re
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
jo
u
rn
e
y
 t
o
 r
u
n
 a
b
o
u
t 

4
5
 m
in
u
te
s
 e
a
rl
ie
r)
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 n
e
w
 A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
 w
h
o
 f
in
is
h
 w
o
rk
 t
h
e
re
 a
t 

5
.3
0
p
m
. 
 A
ls
o
 p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
u
ld
 t
h
is
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 r
u
n
 a
ll-
y
e
a
r 
ro
u
n
d
, 
n
o
t 
te
rm
-t
im
e
 o
n
ly
.’
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

‘R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 d
ir
e
c
t 
b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 R
o
y
a
l 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 a
s
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w
 i
s
 b
a
d
ly
 s
e
rv
e
d
 b
y
 b
u
s
e
s
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
ri
p
s
 t
o
 R
S
C
H
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 l
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 u
s
in
g
 c
a
rs
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
t 
R
S
C
H
 w
o
rs
e
.’
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

‘P
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
m
o
v
in
g
 S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
’s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 M
a
ri
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
 a
n
d
 E
d
w
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 t
a
k
in
g
 

in
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
a
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 M
o
rr
is
o
n
’s
 s
u
p
e
rm
a
rk
e
t,
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 E
d
w
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
B
ig
 

L
e
m
o
n
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
.’
  
(n
b
 a
ll 
o
p
e
ra
to
rs
 w
h
o
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
to
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 b
id
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
) 

4
9
A
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

W
e
 a
re
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 r
o
u
te
 u
p
 i
n
 B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
. 
W
e
 a
re
 n
o
t 
g
e
t 
a
 t
w
e
n
ty
 m
in
u
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
th
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
t;
 w
e
 a
re
 g
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
re
e
 b
u
s
e
s
 a
n
 h
o
u
r,
 m
o
s
tl
y
 t
h
re
e
 r
u
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
e
n
 m
in
u
te
 s
p
a
n
.S
o
 w
e
 a
re
 

w
a
it
in
g
 a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
. 

Y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 a
n
 h
o
u
r 
b
e
fo
re
 y
o
u
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
y
 b
u
s
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
, 
ju
s
t 
to
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 y
o
u
 g
e
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
n
 t
im
e
. 

B
u
s
e
s
 a
re
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t.
 V
e
ry
 b
u
s
y
 a
n
d
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
c
it
y
, 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 f
ra
g
m
e
n
te
d
 

a
n
d
 s
p
a
s
m
o
d
ic
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
u
te
r 
a
re
a
s
  
o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 
(B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
).
 

T
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 t
im
e
 t
h
e
 4
9
A
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
, 
w
e
 a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 w
ill
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
s
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

ro
u
te
. 

If
 w
e
 h
a
d
 a
 1
5
 m
in
u
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
t 
w
a
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 h
e
lp
, 
b
u
t 
I 
e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
e
s
e
 b
u
s
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
ll 
in
 a
 

te
n
 m
in
u
te
 t
im
e
 s
p
a
n
 r
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
te
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 2
0
 m
in
u
te
 b
u
s
e
s
 d
o
 a
t 
th
e
 m
o
m
e
n
t.
 I
 w
ill
 i
n
v
it
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 u
p
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
a
k
 t
o
 u
s
 a
t 
th
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

T
o
 s
a
y
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 a
 £
2
0
,0
0
0
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 u
p
 h
e
re
 i
s
 s
tu
p
id
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
y
 d
id
 r
u
n
 a
 

m
in
ib
u
s
 r
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 E
s
ta
te
 a
t 
th
e
 F
u
n
 D
a
y
 l
a
s
t 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
 c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
ti
m
e
s
, 
I 
s
u
p
p
o
s
e
 t
ry
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
te
 

o
u
t.
 

41



 

 

A
ll 
w
e
 w
a
n
t 
in
 B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 i
s
 a
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 f
iv
e
 m
in
u
te
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
im
e
 t
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
w
a
it
 

4
5
-5
0
 m
in
u
te
s
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 u
p
. 
N
o
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
S
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 3
7
B
 

T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 o
n
e
 o
f 
o
n
ly
 t
w
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 a
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
rl
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 3
7
 a
lo
n
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
  
W
e
 a
ls
o
 h
o
p
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
3
7
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 4
7
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 p
o
p
u
la
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K
e
m
p
 T
o
w
n
 

v
ill
a
g
e
 a
re
a
 w
h
o
 f
in
d
 i
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 g
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 E
a
s
te
rn
 R
o
a
d
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
s
. 

It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 2
1
 

T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 f
ro
m
 o
u
tl
y
in
g
 e
s
ta
te
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M
a
ri
n
a
 a
n
d
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

S
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
t 
re
ta
in
e
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 2
1
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
. 

W
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 l
iv
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 t
o
p
 e
n
d
 o
f 
W
ils
o
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 T
ic
e
h
u
rs
t 

R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
a
 b
u
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  
T
h
e
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
a
v
e
 

to
 g
e
t 
tw
o
 b
u
s
e
s
 -
 t
h
e
 2
1
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
T
h
e
 B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 a
 b
u
s
 a
lo
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  
F
o
r 

th
is
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
2
1
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 o
r 
fo
r 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
, 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
2
2
, 
to
 b
e
 d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 W
ils
o
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 a
lo
n
g
 p
a
s
t 
th
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

B
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 /
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 A
s
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
in
t,
 a
n
d
 i
n
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
t 

th
a
t 
th
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
is
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
m
a
jo
r 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
, 
w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
to
 s
e
e
 a
n
y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

E
d
w
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
 e
a
s
tb
o
u
n
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 A
ls
o
 M
a
y
o
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
 o
f 
R
o
u
n
d
h
ill
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
 b
u
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 a
 l
o
n
g
 w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 a
 s
te
e
p
 h
ill
. 

42



 

 

2
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 1
3
/1
3
A
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 

a
re
a
, 
v
ia
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
R
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
W
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 2
4
/2
6
/4
6
 i
s
 a
b
s
o
lu
te
ly
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l.
 

2
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 i
s
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
, 
s
e
rv
in
g
 s
te
e
p
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
H
o
lli
n
g
b
u
ry
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
. 
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
5
6
 r
u
n
s
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 a
n
d
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

1
3
/1
3
A
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 1
3
/1
3
A
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 

a
re
a
, 
v
ia
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 3
7
B
 (
M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w
 -
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
) 
ru
n
s
 e
v
e
ry
 3
0
 m
in
u
te
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
0
.0
0
 a
n
d
 1
6
.0
0
 

h
o
u
rs
. 

2
. 
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
in
g
/S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
M
a
n
o
r 
H
ill
 a
n
d
 Q
u
e
e
n
's
 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 C
ra
v
e
n
 

V
a
le
 (
8
1
A
/C
 a
n
d
 2
1
/2
1
B
).
 

5
2
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

P
a
u
l 
B
a
ile
y
, 
a
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
o
f 
O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
 (
te
l 
3
0
1
0
8
4
) 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
 e
x
tr
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
2
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 a
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
 

1
9
.2
4
 f
ro
m
 O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
. 
 T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 a
llo
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 o
u
t.
  

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
a
te
 b
u
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
 (
s
e
rv
ic
e
 2
 a
t 
1
1
.2
5
p
m
 f
ro
m
 C
h
u
rc
h
ill
 S
q
u
a
re
) 
–
 b
u
t 

n
o
 b
u
s
 t
o
 g
e
t 
th
e
m
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 a
rr
iv
e
 a
ft
e
r 
7
p
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 

W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 a
 l
a
te
r 
a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
W
e
s
te
rn
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

2
. 
N
e
w
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
in
k
in
g
 H
o
v
e
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
a
fr
o
n
t 
(K
in
g
s
w
a
y
),
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 L
ib
ra
ry
, 
K
in
g
 A
lf
re
d
 &
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll.
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 m
o
re
 o
rb
it
a
l 
b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 -
 e
.g
. 
B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 t
o
 H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
. 

2
. 
W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 m
o
re
 b
u
s
e
s
 a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
ti
m
e
s
. 

3
. 
O
rd
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 (
a
s
 a
 s
tu
d
e
n
t)
: 

  
  
  
1
. 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
 2
. 
E
v
e
n
in
g
  
3
. 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
  
4
. 
S
u
n
d
a
y
  
5
. 
C
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
 

4
. 
O
rd
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 (
a
s
 a
 c
it
iz
e
n
):
 

  
  
  
1
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
  
 2
. 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
  
3
. 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
  
4
. 
S
u
n
d
a
y
  
5
. 
E
v
e
n
in
g
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

"P
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
s
u
b
s
id
y
 i
s
: 

1
. 
E
v
e
n
in
g
s
 

2
. 
S
u
n
d
a
y
s
 

3
. 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

4
.C
o
m
m
u
te
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

5
. 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 -
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 o
ff
 p
e
a
k
" 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
o
u
te
d
 v
ia
 E
d
w
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
in
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
's
 S
tr
e
e
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
a
rr
o
w
 

p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
s
 i
n
 S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
's
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 

43



 

 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
1
,3
7
b
,8
1
a
,8
1
c
 a
n
d
 8
1
 s
e
rv
e
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 c
a
r 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
I 
fe
e
l 
s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 3
7
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 u
s
u
a
lly
 v
e
ry
 r
e
lia
b
le
 a
n
d
 p
u
n
c
tu
a
l.
  

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
ru
n
n
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
lo
n
g
 s
e
a
fr
o
n
t 
to
 e
a
s
e
 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
n
 N
o
rt
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 C
h
u
rc
h
ill
 

S
q
u
a
re
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 d
a
ily
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
to
 S
ta
n
m
e
r 
P
a
rk
, 
p
re
fe
ra
b
ly
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 H
o
v
e
. 
 H
a
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 w
id
e
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
p
a
rk
 u
s
e
rs
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
rg
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
a
rk
, 
p
lu
s
 w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
C
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
, 
 p
a
rk
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

8
1
A
/8
1
C
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 r
e
ta
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 8
1
A
/8
1
C
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 h
ill
y
 a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 l
o
w
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
c
a
r 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
ra
te
s
 o
f 
s
u
b
s
id
y
. 

44



 

  

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
a
 s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
is
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
te
. 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

B
re
e
z
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 h
ig
h
ly
 v
a
lu
e
d
 b
y
 v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
. 
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 1
6
/6
6
 a
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
. 

8
1
A
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 8
1
A
 (
M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
):
 C
o
u
ld
 d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
s
 b
e
 e
v
e
n
e
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
 2
/2
A
 -
 t
im
e
s
 

a
re
 t
o
o
 s
im
ila
r 
a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
 

2
. 
A
ls
o
 o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
s
 (
d
a
y
ti
m
e
) 
c
o
u
ld
 8
1
A
 b
e
 s
p
a
c
e
d
 m
o
re
 e
v
e
n
ly
 w
it
h
 2
/2
A
. 

3
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 8
1
A
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fa
c
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 

4
. 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
n
e
w
 r
o
u
te
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
o
 c
re
m
a
to
ri
a
/c
e
m
e
tr
ie
s
 a
t 
to
p
 o
f 
B
e
a
r 
R
o
a
d
. 
S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
h
o
u
rl
y
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 -
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 -
 E
a
s
te
rn
 R
o
a
d
 -
 S
u
th
e
rl
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 -
 Q
u
e
e
n
s
w
a
y
 -
 F
re
s
h
fi
e
ld
 

R
o
a
d
 -
 T
e
n
a
n
tr
y
 R
o
a
d
 -
B
e
a
r 
R
o
a
d
 -
 V
o
g
u
e
 G
y
ra
to
ry
 -
 U
p
p
e
r 
L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 -
 O
p
e
n
 M
a
rk
e
t 
- 
O
ld
 

S
te
in
e
/C
h
u
rc
h
ill
 S
q
u
a
re
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 v
it
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 w
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 -
 

e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
y
 w
a
y
 -
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 t
ra
v
e
l.
  
T
h
e
re
 

m
u
s
t 
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

B
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
: 

1
) 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 (
I 
s
ta
rt
 w
o
rk
 a
t 
6
.3
0
a
m
 i
n
 H
o
v
e
 f
ro
m
 H
o
lli
n
g
b
u
ry
) 
 

2
) 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

3
) 
E
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

4
) 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

5
) 
M
o
n
 t
o
 S
a
t 
d
a
y
ti
m
e
 'o
ff
 p
e
a
k
' 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 d
ir
e
c
t 
b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
 l
in
k
in
g
 F
iv
e
w
a
y
s
/D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
o
v
e
, 
v
ia
 O
ld
 S
h
o
re
h
a
m
 

R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 v
e
ry
 u
s
e
fu
l 
q
u
ic
k
, 
d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
/S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
 a
n
d
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 

a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 c
a
r.
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 8
1
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
: 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
lu
s
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
 I
n
fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 u
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
r 
o
w
n
e
rs
. 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 m
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
o
id
in
g
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 a
 q
u
ic
k
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 o
u
tl
y
in
g
 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
s
u
b
u
rb
s
 (
e
g
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
t 
M
o
u
ls
e
c
o
o
m
b
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
) 

45



 

  

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
m
m
u
te
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
, 
to
 a
s
s
is
t 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
t 
th
e
s
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 c
u
t 
jo
u
rn
e
y
 t
im
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 d
ri
v
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk
 s
h
if
ts
 o
n
 m
a
tc
h
 d
a
y
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
s
 f
a
n
s
 t
ra
v
e
l.
 

2
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
ta
in
 a
ll 
fu
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 2
1
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
s
 a
s
 i
t’
s
 a
n
 i
n
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 t
im
e
-s
a
v
in
g
 l
in
k
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 W
h
it
e
h
a
w
k
. 

1
1
X
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
 1
1
X
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 v
ia
 A
2
5
9
 

4
7
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 4
7
 i
s
 v
it
a
l 
fo
r 
h
ill
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 r
o
u
te
s
. 
 I
t 
is
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
w
a
lk
 f
a
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
. 
 A
t 
c
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
 t
im
e
s
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 –
 

p
re
fe
ra
b
ly
 e
v
e
ry
 3
0
 m
in
u
te
s
. 
 M
a
n
y
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 t
o
ta
lly
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

d
a
ily
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

2
7
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

O
ld
e
r 
re
s
id
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
W
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 (
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

2
7
) 
is
 v
it
a
l.
  
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
lin
k
 b
e
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
, 
D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

S
h
o
p
s
 (
v
ia
 S
e
v
e
n
 D
ia
ls
).
 

3
7
B
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 3
7
B
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 O
p
e
n
 M
a
rk
e
t 
&
 L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 B
e
a
r 
R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 

S
o
u
th
o
v
e
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
a
re
a
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
le
, 
if
 i
t 
is
 t
o
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r-
u
s
e
d
. 
 A
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
it
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 b
y
 t
ra
ff
ic
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
rt
u
o
u
s
 r
o
u
te
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
p
lit
 a
w
a
y
. 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 3
7
B
 i
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 h
ill
y
 a
re
a
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 

w
it
h
 m
o
b
ili
ty
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 o
r 
h
e
a
v
y
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
. 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 1
6
 a
n
d
 6
6
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
e
ry
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 l
in
k
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
, 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 

n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
. 
 E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
lin
k
s
 t
o
 G
P
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
. 
 I
s
 v
e
ry
 r
e
lia
b
le
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
s
 

a
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 t
im
e
s
. 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

E
a
s
y
L
in
k
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 d
o
 w
e
e
k
ly
 s
h
o
p
. 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 1
6
/6
6
 o
ff
e
r 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 t
o
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
. 
 B
re
e
z
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 v
e
ry
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
fo
r 
to
u
ri
s
ts
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
a
rs
. 
 P
le
a
s
e
 

re
ta
in
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
) 
S
e
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
lo
n
g
 O
ld
 S
h
o
re
h
a
m
 R
o
a
d
 -
 p
le
a
s
e
 r
e
ta
in
. 

2
) 
P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 D
y
k
e
 R
o
a
d
/U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
 a
n
d
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
o
v
e
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 o
ff
-

p
e
a
k
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
h
o
p
s
 -
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 n
o
t 
to
 d
ri
v
e
. 

3
7
B
 &
 8
1
 
C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

 E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 3
7
B
, 
8
1
a
 a
n
d
 8
1
c
 a
re
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 3
7
B
, 
8
1
a
, 
8
1
c
 s
e
rv
in
g
 t
h
e
 Q
u
e
e
n
s
 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 

M
e
a
d
o
w
v
ie
w
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 
 I
m
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
im
e
s
 o
f 
d
a
y
 a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 w
o
rk
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 a
re
 s
o
 

d
iv
e
rs
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 2
4
 h
o
u
r 
c
it
y
. 

46



 

  

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 i
n
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
d
a
y
ti
m
e
 b
u
s
 a
lo
n
g
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
O
ld
 S
h
o
re
h
a
m
 R
o
a
d
 i
n
 

H
o
v
e
. 
 E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
g
e
tt
in
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 (
B
H
A
S
V
IC
 -
 A
m
h
e
rs
t 
C
re
s
) 
&
 m
u
c
h
 a
p
p
re
c
ia
te
d
, 
b
u
t 
re
lia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

V
ie
w
s
 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

It
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
re
a
t 
to
 s
e
e
 m
o
re
 b
u
s
e
s
 r
u
n
 o
n
 b
io
 f
u
e
ls
, 
lik
e
 t
h
e
 b
ig
 l
e
m
o
n
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
. 

A
s
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 i
s
 a
 "
g
re
e
n
" 
c
it
y
 t
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 2
n
d
 n
a
tu
re
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
ix
th
 f
o
rm
s
 w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 b
ig
g
e
r 
is
s
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 1
8
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
5
. 
 I
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 m
a
in
ta
in
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 
C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

It
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
w
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 b
u
s
e
s
 t
o
 C
o
ld
e
a
n
 (
2
4
 &
 2
6
) 
a
re
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
, 
to
 a
llo
w
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 v
is
it
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
h
u
rc
h
. 
 M
a
n
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
re
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
/o
r 
d
o
 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
 c
a
r.
 

5
2
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 f
ro
m
 O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
 C
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 6
.2
8
p
m
 s
e
r 
5
2
 e
x
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 p
le
a
s
e
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
a
fr
o
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 a
n
d
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
: 
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 r
o
u
te
 

w
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ie
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 a
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
. 
W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 M
a
ri
n
a
. 

8
1
/1
4
c
1
6
 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
. 
K
e
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 K
in
g
 G
e
o
rg
e
 V
I 
D
ri
v
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
p
 o
f 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
. 

2
. 
W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

3
. 
W
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 1
4
c
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
lf
 h
o
u
rl
y
 b
y
 e
x
tr
a
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

4
. 
W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 1
6
/6
6
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

P
le
a
s
e
 e
x
te
n
d
 f
ir
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 f
ro
m
 H
o
lli
n
g
b
u
ry
 t
o
 O
ld
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
to
 a
llo
w
 H
o
lli
n
b
u
ry
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 b
y
 b
u
s
 t
o
 W
is
h
in
g
 T
re
e
 N
u
rs
e
ry
. 
A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 h
e
lp
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

P
a
tc
h
a
m
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
it
a
l 
ro
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 h
a
s
 i
n
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

th
o
s
e
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
is
 v
e
ry
 h
ill
y
 a
re
a
 n
o
t 
s
e
rv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 I
t 
is
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

5
6
,7
8
,7
9
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

 w
o
u
ld
 a
p
p
e
a
l 
to
 y
o
u
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
5
6
 b
u
s
 a
ls
o
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 7
8
 a
n
d
 7
9
 

2
6
,3
7
B
8
1
 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

 W
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 2
6
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
s
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
 v
e
ry
 h
ill
y
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 c
a
r 
u
s
e
. 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 3
7
B
 a
n
d
 8
1
A
/C
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
C
o
o
m
b
e
 R
o
a
d
 –
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
h
ill
y
 a
re
a
. 
 

M
a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w
a
lk
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
lo
n
g
 L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
. 
 A
ll 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
, 
a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 m
o
d
e
s
. 

47



 

 

3
7
/3
7
B
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 3
7
 &
 3
7
B
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 m
o
re
 b
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r 
a
re
a
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 

e
v
e
ry
 3
0
 m
in
u
te
s
. 
 S
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
is
 i
s
 d
o
n
e
 b
y
 a
d
d
in
g
 a
 s
h
o
rt
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
f 
B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 t
o
 R
a
c
e
 H
ill
. 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
a
n
o
v
e
r/
Q
u
e
e
n
s
 P
a
rk
 i
s
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
: 
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
v
e
ry
 2
0
 m
in
u
te
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 E
lm
 

G
ro
v
e
/Q
u
e
e
n
s
 P
a
rk
 R
d
 a
n
d
 C
h
u
rc
h
ill
 S
q
u
a
re
 (
re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 1
0
-m
in
u
te
 w
e
e
k
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
).
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 r
e
in
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 S
h
o
p
s
, 
to
 h
e
lp
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
. 

 
C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
H
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
a
fr
o
n
t.
 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 i
n
to
 a
 h
a
lf
-h
o
u
rl
y
 s
u
b
u
rb
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 H
o
lli
n
g
b
u
ry
/P
a
tc
h
a
m
, 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 i
n
te
rc
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
 (
T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 b
u
s
 c
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 K
n
o
ll 

E
s
ta
te
).
  
A
ls
o
, 
re
v
ie
w
 n
u
m
b
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 8
1
 g
ro
u
p
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
s
im
p
lif
y
in
g
. 

5
6
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 f
o
rm
a
l 
te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 
o
ff
-p
e
a
k
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
la
n
d
s
, 
b
u
t 
d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 

to
 s
e
rv
e
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 
in
 V
ic
to
ri
a
 R
o
a
d
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

W
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 m
o
re
 b
u
s
e
s
 l
in
k
in
g
 Q
u
e
e
n
’s
 P
a
rk
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 a
s
 b
o
th
 a
re
a
s
 a
re
 h
ill
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 u
s
u
a
lly
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 d
ri
v
e
 i
n
s
te
a
d
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

N
e
e
d
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
3
 r
o
u
te
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 M
a
ri
n
a
 a
n
d
 Q
u
e
e
n
’s
 P
a
rk
 

T
h
e
 3
7
B
 m
u
s
t 
ru
n
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 t
o
 u
s
e
 i
t 
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 8
1
 s
h
o
u
ld
 o
p
e
ra
te
 a
s
 a
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
. 

E
v
e
n
in
g
 8
1
A
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
a
n
 e
v
e
ry
 3
0
 m
in
s
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 H
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

N
e
e
d
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
3
 r
o
u
te
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 M
a
ri
n
a
 a
n
d
 Q
u
e
e
n
’s
 P
a
rk
  

T
h
e
 3
7
B
 i
s
 v
it
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 h
ill
y
 a
re
a
 i
t 
s
e
rv
e
s
 b
u
t 
m
u
s
t 
ru
n
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

it
. 
 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 &
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 8
1
 s
h
o
u
ld
 o
p
e
ra
te
 a
s
 a
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
. 
 

E
v
e
n
in
g
 8
1
A
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 m
o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
a
n
 e
v
e
ry
 3
0
 m
in
s
. 
 

A
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
e
x
tr
a
 c
a
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

5
6
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o
n
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
th
e
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 a
s
 i
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
lin
k
s
 t
o
 h
ill
y
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
P
a
tc
h
a
m
 a
n
d
 H
o
lli
n
g
b
u
ry
. 
 W
in
te
r 
S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
4
 a
n
d
 2
6
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 v
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
a
r 
in
 m
in
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 f
o
r 
P
a
tc
h
a
m
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
-r
o
u
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 (
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
) 
to
 s
e
rv
e
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll.
 

7
7
,7
8
,7
9
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

B
re
e
z
e
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
o
w
n
s
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 7
7
, 
7
8
 &
 7
9
 a
ll 
p
ro
v
id
e
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m
a
n
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
a
rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 v
is
it
o
rs
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
a
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
o
o
. 
A
ll 
th
re
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 h
ig
h
ly
 v
a
lu
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
: 
th
e
y
 m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 m
o
re
 o
ft
e
n
. 
 I
t 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
if
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 b
ik
e
s
 t
o
o
. 

48



 

 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
h
ill
y
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 -
 a
n
d
 a
re
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
's
 o
n
ly
 l
in
k
 

to
 t
h
e
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

5
2
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
2
 i
s
 a
 v
it
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
. 
 I
t 
is
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

e
v
e
n
 m
o
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
tu
d
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
t 
O
v
in
g
d
e
a
n
 H
a
ll 
S
c
h
o
o
l.
  
A
 

n
e
w
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
d
ir
e
c
t 
lin
k
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 F
a
lm
e
r 
(A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
, 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
, 
b
u
s
/t
ra
in
 t
o
 L
e
w
e
s
) 
fr
o
m
 

th
is
 a
re
a
 -
 c
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 5
2
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 F
a
lm
e
r 
S
ta
ti
o
n
?
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

O
rd
e
r 
o
f 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
: 

4
 E
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

5
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

3
 M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 '
o
ff
-p
e
a
k
' 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

8
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 8
1
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 w
e
e
k
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 8
1
A
 a
n
d
 8
1
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 W
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 2
7
A
 (
1
4
C
),
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 8
1
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
lf
-h
o
u
rl
y
 (
o
r 
a
 1
4
C
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
).
 

O
rd
e
r 
o
f 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 (
ta
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 a
s
 1
s
t,
 o
r 
m
o
s
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t)
: 

E
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 '
o
ff
-p
e
a
k
' 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

8
1
B
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 
 A
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 F
u
rz
e
 H
ill
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
w
h
o
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w
a
lk
 t
o
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 W
e
s
te
rn
 R
o
a
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 w
it
h
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 u
s
e
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r-
u
s
e
d
 i
f 
p
ro
m
o
te
d
 m
o
re
. 
 I
d
e
a
lly
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
u
n
 m
o
re
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 l
in
k
in
g
 D
it
c
h
lin
g
 R
o
a
d
/F
iv
e
w
a
y
s
/H
o
lli
n
g
d
e
a
n
 w
it
h
 L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
, 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 u
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
 e
tc
. 

3
7
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 3
7
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 l
e
s
s
 a
b
le
-b
o
d
ie
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 B
ri
s
to
l 
E
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
in
k
in
g
 R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
, 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
lm
e
r 
is
 n
e
e
d
e
d
, 
fo
r 
th
o
s
e
 s
tu
d
y
in
g
 o
r 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
t 
th
e
 u
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
 o
r 
A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
. 
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 

u
s
a
b
le
. 

1
6
/5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

 S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
. 
 R
e
v
ie
w
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 t
im
e
 o
n
 1
6
 a
n
d
 5
6
 o
w
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
la
y
s
. 

49



 

 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

B
u
s
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 f
ro
m
 S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
’s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
v
ia
 M
a
ri
n
e
 P
a
ra
d
e
 a
n
d
 L
o
w
e
r 
R
o
c
k
 G
a
rd
e
n
s
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
a
rr
o
w
, 
o
v
e
rc
ro
w
d
e
d
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
’s
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
 a
t 

th
e
 w
e
s
te
rn
 e
n
d
. 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
u
s
 s
to
p
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
it
e
d
 a
t 
O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 (
s
to
p
 Z
) 
a
n
d
 L
o
w
e
r 
R
o
c
k
 

G
a
rd
e
n
s
 i
n
 l
ie
u
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
 S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
’s
 S
tr
e
e
t.
  
A
ll 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il-
fu
n
d
e
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

4
7
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 4
7
 v
e
ry
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 E
a
s
t 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
is
 h
ill
y
 a
re
a
, 
b
u
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 r
u
n
 h
a
lf
-h
o
u
rl
y
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 A
 s
h
u
tt
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
a
s
t 
ro
a
d
 b
u
s
 s
to
p
s
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
fu
l.
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

M
o
re
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N
e
w
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
, 
lin
k
in
g
 m
o
re
 a
re
a
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
o
w
n
. 

1
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
 r
o
u
te
, 
to
 l
in
k
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 a
n
d
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 w
it
h
 

P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 l
a
te
r 
e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 (
la
s
t 
b
u
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
fo
re
 3
p
m
).
  

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

M
o
re
 m
o
n
e
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
s
o
la
te
d
 o
n
 a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 a
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

1
6
,5
6
&
6
6
 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
, 
6
6
 a
n
d
 5
6
. 
 

1
6
 &
 6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

T
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 v
e
h
ic
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
 a
n
d
 6
6
 i
s
 t
o
o
 s
m
a
ll 
to
 c
o
p
e
. 
 (
B
H
 B
u
s
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
 l
a
rg
e
r 

o
n
e
 t
h
is
 m
o
n
th
) 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

1
6
/6
6
 i
s
 a
 l
if
e
lin
e
 t
o
 s
in
g
le
 m
u
m
s
, 
e
ld
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
n
’t
 d
ri
v
e
. 
 I
t’
s
 a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 o
n
 a
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
. 
 B
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 R
o
a
d
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 w
o
u
ld
 s
u
ff
e
r 
a
s
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 b
u
s
e
s
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 b
u
s
 r
o
u
te
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 a
 l
if
e
lin
e
 f
o
r 
lo
n
e
ly
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 (
P
a
re
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
ild
, 

w
h
o
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 d
ri
v
e
).
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
n
y
 d
im
in
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 
a
re
a
 i
s
 u
n
th
in
k
a
b
le
: 
 a
ll 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 &
 K
n
o
ll 
d
o
e
s
n
’t
 h
a
v
e
 s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 K
in
g
 A
lf
re
d
 i
s
 i
n
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
. 
 C
o
u
ld
 a
 b
u
s
 

ro
u
te
 p
le
a
s
e
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
a
fr
o
n
t 
&
 K
in
g
 A
lf
re
d
, 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
o
n
c
e
 a
 d
a
y
 e
a
c
h
 w
a
y
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 l
in
k
 H
&
K
 w
it
h
 P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
, 
fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
 c
la
s
s
e
s
. 

1
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

T
h
e
 1
6
 f
ro
m
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
s
 i
t 
m
a
k
e
s
 l
in
k
s
 n
o
t 
m
a
d
e
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 5
B
 –
 e
g
 w
it
h
 

P
o
rt
s
la
d
e
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
 B
u
t 
g
e
tt
in
g
 h
o
m
e
 l
a
te
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
1
6
 a
ft
e
r 

3
p
m
. 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
 a
n
d
 6
6
. 
 

1
6
/5
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
is
p
la
y
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
6
/5
6
/6
6
. 

1
6
/6
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

A
ll 
th
e
 (
1
6
/6
6
) 
b
u
s
 d
ri
v
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 w
o
n
d
e
rf
u
l!
  

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 s
u
c
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
s
e
s
 (
1
6
/6
6
) 
th
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 e
v
e
n
 n
o
ti
c
e
 i
f 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 h
a
s
n
’t
 t
ra
v
e
lle
d
 a
n
d
 g
o
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
f 
th
e
y
’r
e
 o
k
 

50



 

  

7
6
/7
6
A
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 7
6
/7
6
A
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
ti
m
e
d
 t
o
 r
u
n
 5
 m
in
s
 l
a
te
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
. 
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
fi
n
is
h
e
s
 1
4
.4
5
, 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
ly
 g
iv
in
g
 5
 m
in
u
te
s
 t
o
 c
a
tc
h
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 -
 c
o
u
ld
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 2
 

s
u
b
u
rb
s
. 

9
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
: 
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 9
1
 t
o
 b
e
 d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 t
o
 V
a
rn
d
e
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
b
e
fo
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
o
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
l.
 A
ls
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 a
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
: 
fr
o
m
 H
o
v
e
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 
C
a
rd
in
a
l 
N
e
w
m
a
n
, 
to
 V
a
rn
d
e
a
n
. 

7
4
/7
5
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 7
4
 a
n
d
 7
5
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
lin
k
s
 f
o
r 
P
a
tc
h
a
m
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
t 
th
e
 u
s
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
m
 w
ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 m
o
re
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 P
a
tc
h
a
m
. 
 S
u
rv
e
y
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
b
o
th
 b
u
s
e
s
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 I
f 
o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 b
u
s
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 i
t 
m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
e
 C
o
ld
e
a
n
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
in
k
in
g
 U
p
p
e
r 
D
ri
v
e
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
 H
o
v
e
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 

1
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 H
a
n
g
le
to
n
 V
a
lle
y
 D
ri
v
e
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
m
o
re
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
s
 a
n
d
 a
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 R
e
lia
b
ili
ty
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 1
6
. 

5
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 5
6
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
te
rs
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 K
n
o
ll 
E
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 u
s
e
fu
l 
fo
r 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 t
ri
p
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
o
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
/W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 -
 F
a
lm
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
ru
n
n
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 d
a
y
, 
to
 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
t 
b
o
th
 u
n
is
 a
n
d
 A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
. 

8
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
n
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
. 

8
1
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

In
 w
h
a
t 
o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 w
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
?
 

T
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
ll 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t!
  

P
e
o
p
le
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
to
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
s
e
 o
ff
-p
e
a
k
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
ti
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
u
ri
s
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
o
o
. 

A
n
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 1
4
C
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
, 
o
r 
a
 h
a
lf
-h
o
u
rl
y
 8
1
 

e
v
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
. 
O
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 e
v
e
n
in
g
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 G
o
ld
s
to
n
e
 V
a
lle
y
; 
w
e
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
o
 w
it
h
 o
n
e
. 

9
6
 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 9
6
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 W
e
s
td
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 B
la
tc
h
in
g
to
n
 M
ill
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 P
a
rk
 L
o
w
e
r 

a
n
d
 U
p
p
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
, 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
 m
o
re
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
ru
n
 c
a
r 
jo
u
rn
e
y
s
. 

 
IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 d
ir
e
c
t 
re
g
u
la
r 
w
e
e
k
d
a
y
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 R
o
tt
in
g
d
e
a
n
 o
r 
W
o
o
d
in
g
d
e
a
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
lm
e
r 

(p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 w
o
rk
 a
t 
o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
 A
m
e
x
 S
ta
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
) 

 
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
 s
h
u
tt
le
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 
L
o
w
e
r 
B
e
v
e
n
d
e
a
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
e
rv
e
d
 b
y
 4
9
A
 w
it
h
 

L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 S
a
in
s
b
u
ry
’s
, 
a
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 4
9
A
 i
s
 ‘
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 a
n
d
 u
n
re
lia
b
le
.’
 

 

51



52



 

ENVIRONMENT AND 
COMMUNITY SAFETY 
OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 28 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Monitoring Outcomes of the Scrutiny Review of 
Community Safety:  Services for Older People and 
Victims of Sexual Violence  

Date of Meeting: 31st October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director: Communities  

Contact Officer: Name:  Linda Beanlands Tel: 29-1115 

 E-mail: linda.beanlands@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 This report enables the Environment and Community Safety Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to monitor and track progress on the scrutiny 
recommendations made to the Executive on older people and on support 
services for victims of sexual offences. The recommendations from the two 
scrutiny reviews and updates appear as appendices 1 and 2 to this report. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

(1) That Members consider the action taken against these recommendations, 
and provide feedback. 
 
(2) That the Committee determines whether further progress reports relating 
to these scrutiny reviews are required. 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

  
3.1 The Scrutiny Review of Older People and Community Safety 
  
A cross-party working group of Members of the Environment and Community 
Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ECSOSC) comprising Councillors 
Warren Morgan, Tony Janio and Ian Davey, considered priority issues for 
scrutiny in October 2008. The group identified the importance of fear of crime to 
older people in the City and improved information for older people; as a key 

53



 

 

issue.  This had recently been raised at a Community Safety Forum meeting by 
the Director of Age Concern.   
 
3.2 Environment and Community Safety Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(ECSOSC) subsequently agreed to establish a scrutiny panel on older people 
and community safety with a remit to investigate: 
 

• To what extent are the views of older people known, regarding community 
safety? 

• Do older people have specific concerns about safety in the community? 

• How can older people be helped to feel safer in the community? 
 

3.3 Councillors Mo Marsh (Chair) and Amy Kennedy, and former councillors 
David Smart and David Watkins with co-optee from the Older People’s Council, 
John Eyles, served on the Panel.  

 
3.4 The Panel’s completed report was endorsed by the Environment and 
Community Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14 September 2009 and 
referred to the Council’s Executive. Cabinet considered the report on 9 December 
2009 and agreed the actions as detailed in the implementation plan (Appendix 1) 
The Scrutiny report and cabinet response were reported to full Council on 28 
January 2010. 

 
3.5 The Community Safety, Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy 2011 – 2013, 
now includes a priority and outcome which aims to achieve ‘Older People feeling 
safer and at less risk of victimisation’. This overarching outcome incorporates 
aims of services being accessible and more responsive to the needs of older 
people. The implementation plan that was drawn up following the conclusion of 
the scrutiny review (appendix 1),  is now incorporated within the Community 
Safety Strategy as the delivery plan for this priority area.  Performance indicators 
and ‘Parallel Plans’ which set out actions to achieve the delivery plan are also 
identified.   
 
3.6  While the developments described above are welcomed, delivery of the 
action plan (and therefore of the scrutiny recommendations) has been ad-hoc, 
dependent upon the extent to which actions can be integrated within committed 
existing services and resources. However, the Partnership Community Safety 
Team has recently concluded a restructuring of its Hate Crime and Anti-Social 
Behaviour functions. One result of that is to incorporate co-ordination of the work 
programme to increase the safety of older people, into a community safety 
manager post. That change took effect at the beginning of October. Future 
updates on the work programme and scrutiny recommendations will therefore 
show the progress that has been made.  
 
4 The Scrutiny Review Of Services For Victims Of Sexual Offences  

 
4.1 The scrutiny panel comprised former councillors David Watkins 
(Chairman), Juliet McCaffery (Deputy Chairman), Averil Older and Councillor Alex 
Phillips.  It was formed following a notice of motion and referral from full Council. 
 

4.2 The terms of reference for the panel were agreed as:  

54



 

 

 

o To gain an understanding of the nature and prevalence of sexual 
violence, particularly in the Brighton and Hove context  

o To identify what support services for victims of sexual violence are 
already available to Brighton and Hove residents 

o To identify where there are gaps in the provision of support services 
o To identify what referral routes and pathways between different 

statutory agencies and support services currently exist, and how these 
can be developed further to increase support to victims of sexual 
violence 

o To investigate ways to encourage a co-ordinated and holistic approach 
to the provision of support services for victims of sexual violence 

o To investigate ways to encourage a more strategic and integrated 
approach to planning and commissioning support services 

o To identify ways to ensure that support services can be sustainably 
resourced 

o To identify ways to consult with service users about the support 
services they are accessing 

 
4.3 The Panel’s Report of findings and recommendations was agreed by 21 
June 2010 ECSOSC.  Cabinet on 9 December 2010 considered the 
recommendations and agreed the actions in the implementation plan (Appendix 
2).  
 
4.4 Significant progress has been made in the delivery of almost all the 
recommended actions and that progress is set out in Appendix 2.  Of particular 
note is the establishment of the Sussex wide joint commissioning arrangements of 
the Sexual Assault Referral Centre which combines clinical and forensic services 
for victims of rape and sexual assault and the joint commissioning arrangements 
for counselling and Independent Sexual Violence Advisor services. The joint 
commissioning arrangements result in ‘value for money’ investment while 
preserving the local delivery of essential support services which also link with rape 
crisis and other targeted initiatives in Brighton & Hove for those who are most 
vulnerable and at risk.  

 
4.5 The Community Safety, Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy 2011 – 2013 
includes a priority which aims to ‘reduce sexual violence and abuse’. Appendix 3 
is the section of the Strategy which describes the comprehensive scope of the 
work being undertaken to achieve the overarching and related outcomes. As can 
be seen from the information within that Appendix, the outcomes to be achieved 
range from range from prevention (eg. increased knowledge and skills about 
forming healthy relationships) to providing increased support to victims through 
the criminal justice process and post sentence of the perpetrator.  

 
4.6 Monitoring of performance indicators and responding to the analysis of data 
is important to the achievement of the outcomes. The indicators are also set out in 
appendix 3: they range from monitoring the number of police recorded sexual 
offences (we are seeking to increase reporting) to the percentage of finalised 
court cases with a successful outcome. Services delivered to victims from the 
Sexual Assault Referral Centre and the provision of local support services are 
also closely monitored.  

55



 

 

 
 

 
5. Monitoring Scrutiny Reviews 
 
The arrangements for monitoring the outcome of scrutiny recommendations are as 
reported for 20mph scrutiny review which appears elsewhere on this agenda. 
 

6. CONSULTATION 

 

6.1 A number of the scrutiny panel meetings (in relation to the safety of older 
people) were advertised as public meetings, providing opportunities for residents 
of the city to share their views and experiences. Their information was taken into 
account as evidence.  Within both scrutiny processes, the panels invited a range 
of organisations to give evidence and to respond to questions from panel 
members. Community Safety Forum meetings provided further opportunities for 
consultation. 

 

7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Financial Implications: 

7.1 The overall approach is to deliver the implementation plans within existing 
resources or, where resources are required, to consider the allocation of those 
through the Commissioning process.  

 

Legal Implications: 

7.2 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 gives the police and local authority an 
equal duty to reduce crime and disorder and fear of crime and improve 
community safety. Requirements are also placed upon partners within the Crime 
and Disorder Reduction Partnership by this and subsequent legislation and 
guidance. The scrutiny process and the recommendations further the delivery of 
these legal provisions. 

 

Equalities Implications: 

7.3 The implementation of the recommendations will improve the lives of 
those who are vulnerable because of older age, disability or ill health or because 
they have been victims of sexual offences. Equality Impact Assessments of the 
Community Safety, Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy and action plans will be 
completed.   

 

Sustainability Implications: 

7.4 Implementation of the recommendations to address the findings of 
scrutiny will greatly assist in the overall delivery of the Community Safety, Crime 
Reduction and Drugs Strategy 2011 to 2013 in which a number of sustainability 
objectives are identified. 

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

56



 

 

7.5 The overall purpose of the scrutiny process which is the subject of these 
reports was to reduce fear of crime, increase understanding of effective action 
taken by the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership, increase the safety of 
older people and to reduce sexual violence and abuse.  

 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

7.6 The recommendations are designed to reduce actual risks that may be 
experienced by older people as well as to re-assure them that they are in fact, 
safer than they perceive. However, reducing fear of crime is in itself of benefit to 
the welfare of older people and therefore results in risk reduction. 

 

7.7 The recommendations in relation to services for victims of sexual violence 
aim to bring a greater number of perpetrators to justice, thereby reducing further 
risks to the individual and to residents and visitors to Brighton & Hove.   

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

7.8 In relation to the scrutiny review of community safety services for older 
people, the recommendations will bring benefits for all of those in the city who 
are over 50 years of age. 

 

7.9 In relation to the scrutiny review of community safety services for victims 
of sexual violence, the recommendations are bringing significant benefits to 
those victims.   

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 

 

1 Recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of Older People and 
Community Safety and progress against the recommendations. 

 

2 Recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of services for victims of Sexual 
Violence and progress against those recommendations.  

 

3 Extract from the Community Safety, Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy 
2011 – 2013 in relation to the priority crime area ‘Sexual Violence, Abuse and 
Exploitation, the Sex Industry and Trafficking’  

 

Documents In Members’ Rooms/ Background Documents 

 

None. 

 

 

 

57



58



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 2
8
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
  

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

9
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(f
ro

m
 P

C
S
T
, 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t,
  

A
S

C
H

) 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

r 
lik

e
ly

 d
a
te

 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 T
h
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

o
o
k
le

t 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 
in

 u
s
e
r-
fr
ie

n
d
ly

 f
o
rm

a
t 
to

 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
 o

n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 s

a
fe

. 

T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 f
o
r 
O

ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

. 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9
 N

H
S

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 

a
n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

) 
la

u
n
c
h
e
d
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 P
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

 
p
ilo

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
T
h
e
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

 
to

o
l 
th

a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 
b
o
th

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 t
o
: 

•
 

fe
e
l 
in

 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t;
 

•
 

g
a
th

e
r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
ti
m

e
, 
q
u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
ily

; 

•
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

 f
o
rm

a
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
it
s
 t
h
e
m

; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
 h

a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 f
o
r 
O

ld
e
r 
P

e
o
p
le

, 
a
im

in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 

la
u
n
c
h
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
. 
 

59



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
S

C
&

H
 c

a
n
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
te

 c
a
n
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 

th
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

b
ro

a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 C

ra
w

le
y
 a

n
d
 M

id
 

S
u
s
s
e
x
  
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B

e
 S

m
a
rt
 B

e
 S

a
fe

 
H

a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 

 2
 

 in
te
r-
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
  

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

in
te

r-
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 h

e
lp

 r
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
, 

b
u
ild

 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
lin

g
s
 

o
f 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 i
ts

 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

, 
p
a
rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

, 
to

 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 i
n
te

r-
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 A

g
e
in

g
 S

u
b
-N

e
tw

o
rk

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 W

H
O

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
ie

s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 

A
g
e
in

g
 S

u
b
-N

e
tw

o
rk

) 
T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 

A
g
e
in

g
 S

u
b
-N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
te

r-
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
x
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
  

N
H

S
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 h
a
v
e
 a

re
 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
In

te
rg

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
/d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

 W
h
ile

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 d
a
y
 t
o
 d

a
y
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 i
n
te

r-
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 (
w

it
h
in

 o
u
r 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 

c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 )
 

it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 c

a
rr
y
 o

u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
in

te
r-
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

. 
T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,
 r
e
m

a
in

 f
o
r 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

llo
w

. 
  

60



in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

 N
H

S
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 
o
n
 a

 p
e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr
a
to

r 
S

it
e
 b

id
. 
 

A
S

C
&

H
 c

a
n
 f
a
c
ili
ta

te
 i
n
te

r 
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

w
o
rk

; 
th

is
 h

a
p
p
e
n
s
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 E

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

3
 

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it
h
 w

id
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
/s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P

a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
is

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 
e
lim

in
a
te

 o
r 
m

in
im

is
e
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

m
o
b
ili
ty

, 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

b
ili
ty

 t
o
 i
n
te

ra
c
t 

fu
lly

 i
n
 s

o
c
ie

ty
. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 w

ill
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
it
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 
w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 w
id

e
r 
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

. 
 N

H
S

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
p
o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
(T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 
re

v
ie

w
).
 

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
c
a
rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

s
tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 
T
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
E

IA
’s

 m
u
s
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 i
s
 g

iv
e
n
. 

 A
ll 

p
o
lic

ie
s
/p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
e
v
e
ry

 3
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

S
te

e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 
 A

S
C

&
H

 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e
 o

v
e
r 
5
0
 

E
IA

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
, 
ra

n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
d
ir
e
c
t 

re
le

v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 (
S

u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

O
ld

e
r 
P

e
o
p
le

's
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
) 
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 (
P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
, 
S

u
s
s
e
x
 H

o
m

e
m

o
v
e
).
  
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

's
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u
p
 

a
n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

t 
A

D
 l
e
v
e
l,
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

fr
o
m

 E
IA

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 '
lib

ra
ry

 o
f 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
' 
w

it
h
in

 A
S

C
&

H
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

&
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 T

e
a
m

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
E

IA
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

61



b
y
 t
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

  G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t,
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

u
ty

 
in

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

e
w

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
 

4
 

M
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

a
re

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

is
o
la

te
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
b
e
 m

a
in

s
tr
e
a
m

e
d
. 

 N
/A

 
 T
h
is

 w
ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 o

th
e
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
b
le

m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 g

o
o
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 

lo
s
t 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
re

 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
M

a
in

s
tr
e
a
m

in
g
 c

o
u
ld

 
b
e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 V
F
M

. 

 In
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
o
u
r 
g
ra

n
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a
r 
D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

2
0
1
0
-1

3
 a

t 
£
2
5
,0

0
0
 p

a
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

a
re

 S
c
h
e
m

e
. 
O

u
r 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
ls

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 A

g
e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 &
 

th
e
 C

a
re

rs
 C

e
n
tr
e
. 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

h
e
s
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 i
n
 T

a
rn

e
r 
a
n
d
 E

a
s
te

rn
 

R
o
a
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 N

C
S

 w
it
h
 t
w

o
 

s
m

a
ll 

g
ra

n
ts

 (
o
n
e
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h
 a

re
a
) 
o
f 
£
5
0
0
 e

a
c
h
. 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 a

ls
o
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 £

5
0
0
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 F

u
n
d
. 
T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 g
e
tt
in

g
 

m
o
re

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

lie
n
ts

. 

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
o
rm

e
d
. 
T
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

62



m
in

d
fu

l 
o
f 
th

e
 i
n
te

rr
e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 a
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 

 

5
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y
  

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
g
iv

in
g
 

s
o
m

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 
a
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
 

a
n
 a

re
a
 n

e
a
r 
fa

m
ily

 o
r 

fr
ie

n
d
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
a
n
 

o
ld

e
r 
p
e
rs

o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

n
e
a
rb

y
. 

  N
/A

 
 N

/A
 

 T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 l
e
tt
in

g
s
 

s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 a

b
ili
ty

 
to

 o
ff
e
r 
o
r 
re

c
e
iv

e
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
o
u
ld

 
th

e
n
 b

e
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 c
e
rt
a
in

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
it
y
, 
re

c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 o

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 In
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
p
o
lic

y
 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
is

 c
la

u
s
e
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 

B
a
n
d
 C

 u
n
d
e
r 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
m

o
v
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
: 

 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 a

 p
a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
a
re

a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 w

h
e
re

 f
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

a
t 

n
e
e
d
 w

o
u
ld

 c
a
u
s
e
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

, 
e
g
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 o

r 
re

c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 

 A
 f
u
ll 

re
-r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
r 
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
rr
e
c
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 
th

e
s
e
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

 

6
 

C
o
ld
 C
a
ll
in
g
  

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

to
 h

e
lp

 c
o
m

b
a
t 
d
o
o
rs

te
p
 

c
ri
m

e
, 
T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
‘n

o
 c

o
ld

-c
a
lli
n
g
’ 
z
o
n
e
s
 i
n
 

a
re

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

in
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 i
s
 i
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 T

ra
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
w

h
e
th

e
r 
o
r 
n
o
t 
th

is
 

w
o
rk

 c
a
n
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 N
/A

 
 A

S
C

&
H

 w
ill
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 T

ra
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 z

o
n
e
s
, 
th

is
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h

a
p
p
e
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

 In
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 T

ra
d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 (
T
S

D
) 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 1

0
,0

0
0
 u

n
in

v
it
e
d
 d

o
o
rs

te
p
 c

a
lle

r 
w

a
rn

in
g
 s

ti
c
k
e
rs

 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 P

o
lic

e
. 
D

u
e
 t
o
 

p
u
b
lic

 d
e
m

a
n
d
  
B

 &
 H

 T
S

D
 o

rd
e
re

d
 a

n
o
th

e
r 
2
,0

0
0
 

in
 J

u
ly

. 
 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
re

s
s
 r
e
le

a
s
e
 f
e
a
tu

re
d
 i
n
 

T
h
e
 A

rg
u
s
 i
n
 2

2
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 w

e
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

9
0
 C

o
n
s
u
m

e
rD

ir
e
c
t 
S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
 

63



s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

/n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 m

a
ilb

o
x
 s

ti
c
k
e
rs

 
fr
o
m

 c
o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 T

h
e
 D

e
a
f 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
, 
H

o
m

e
 A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
’s

 
T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
c
u
e
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
h
e
 s

ti
c
k
e
rs

 a
t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
H

a
n
g
le

to
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 –

 5
0
+
 E

v
e
n
t 
; 
E

le
c
tr
ic

 B
la

n
k
e
t 

te
s
ti
n
g
; 
S

it
e
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
s
 H

o
v
e
 

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

–
 s

ta
n
d
; 
L
e
ts

 D
o
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
t 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
; 
S

ta
ff
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 (
H

T
H

);
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 
S

o
ls

ti
c
e
 &

 P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 E

x
h
ib

it
io

n
; 

K
e
m

p
to

w
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
; 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 E

v
e
n
t 
th

e
m

e
: 
g
a
rd

e
n
in

g
; 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 D

a
y
  

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

ll 
T
S

D
 R

a
p
id

 A
c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

  
re

fe
rr
a
ls

 
c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

ti
c
k
e
rs

. 
 

S
ti
c
k
e
rs

 w
ill
 b

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 a

t 
fu

tu
re

 e
v
e
n
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

a
th

o
lic

it
y
 B

a
z
a
a
r,
 D

e
a
f 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

E
v
e
n
t,
 C

it
y
 A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 -
 f
o
r 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 d

a
y
. 

7
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

re
g
u
la

r 
tr
a
in

in
g
 b

e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
v
e
ry

 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
a
re

r 
a
n
d
 

 T
h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 f
o
r 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 i
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 o

v
e
r 
7
0
 s

ta
ff
 w

it
h
in

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 M
u
lt
i-
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
rt
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
  
d
e
a
l 
w

it
h
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
. 
 

64



v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 

s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
e
ld

e
r 
a
b
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
. 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 

S
e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 
A
S

C
&

H
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

ra
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
ld

e
r 
a
b
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
. 

A
n
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ilo
t 
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
N

e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 a

re
 n

e
a
ri
n
g
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 m

o
v
in

g
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 

A
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

k
ill
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

t 
a
ll 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
s
 w

it
h
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

ld
e
r 
a
b
u
s
e
. 
  

8
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
 c

a
rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

w
it
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te

n
t 
a
n
d
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 

o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 e

ld
e
r 

a
b
u
s
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 

S
e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 

 A
S

C
&

H
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 p

ro
to

c
o
l.
 

 

 A
s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ilo
t 

w
o
rk

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
s
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

T
h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
r,
 R

IS
E

, 
to

 a
p
p
ly

 a
 S

o
c
ia

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 o

n
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
a
s
 

to
 w

h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

e
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
. 
T
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
e
d
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
  

65



9
 

 S
e
le
c
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 

D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

e
ld

e
r 
a
b
u
s
e
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
ill
n
e
s
s
 b

e
 r
e
fe

rr
e
d
 o

n
 

to
 t
h
e
 S

e
le

c
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 

 N
/A

 

 It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 a

s
 

p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
le

c
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 

  

 T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 n
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 o
n
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 
A

 
fu

ll 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a

ll 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n
 d

u
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

ld
e
r 

a
b
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill
n
e
s
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 C

it
y
. 
  

 

1
0
 

R
a
c
is
t/
R
e
li
g
io
u
s
ly
 

c
ri
m
e
s
/i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
  
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

ra
c
ia

l 
h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 c

e
n
tr
e
s
 a

re
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 L

G
B
T
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 

o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 --
 

A
S

C
&

H
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

re
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 t
h
is

 
y
e
a
r,
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 

c
ri
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
a
t 
w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
it
s
 f
o
c
u
s
, 
th

o
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

t 
p
a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
ri
s
k
 

o
r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

g
e
. 
A
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 i
s
 

to
 b

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 
w

h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

if
 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 c

o
m

e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

s
e
e
k
 h

e
lp

. 
 

O
u
r 
m

in
im

u
m

 c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 
n
o
w

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rp

e
tr
a
to

rs
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
f 
th

a
t 
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

66



w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
f 
th

a
t 
is

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
  

 

1
1
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
e
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 

a
b
u
s
e
 b

y
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

. 

T
h
e
 A

lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 c

a
rr
y
in

g
 

o
u
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 O

ld
e
r 
P

e
o
p
le

 a
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

. 

T
h
e
 C

h
e
e
rs

!?
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

) 
h
a
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
  
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
e
e
rs

!?
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

) 
h
a
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
  
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 
 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

a
rm

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l,
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
a
n
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ilo
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
A

 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 m
o
v
in

g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 ‘
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
’ 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
a
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
n
 b

y
 T

h
e
 

A
lc

o
h
o
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 (
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
T
).
 T

h
e
re

 w
ill
 b

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 o

v
e
ra

ll.
 T

h
e
re

 w
ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 d

ri
n
k
 t
o
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
le

v
e
ls

. 
 

1
2
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 T
h
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

lic
e
n
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
lic

e
n
s
e
d
 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 b

e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 v

a
lu

e
 

d
a
y
ti
m

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 f
o
o
d
 

a
n
d
 d

ri
n
k
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 

 N
/A

 

  A
S

C
&

H
 w

o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 t
o
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n
 t
h
is

 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

o
n
 e

s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

O
u
r 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
tr
ie

n
n
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
. 
A

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 d

u
e
 t
o
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n
 1

8
th
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 f
o
r 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 1

6
th
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r.
 T

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 o

n
 o

u
r 
lo

c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 u

s
in

g
 

q
u
a
n
ti
ta

ti
v
e
, 
q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
to

ry
 

67



a
tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 o

ld
e
r 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

. 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

te
c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

e
ff
e
c
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
a
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

is
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 m
o
rt
a
lit

y
, 
m

o
rt
a
lit

y
 

fr
o
m

 c
h
ro

n
ic

 l
iv

e
r 
d
is

e
a
s
e
, 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 w

o
rs

e
 

lo
c
a
lly

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

ic
tu

re
 s

e
e
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

p
o
lic

y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
s
 e

n
tr
e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 c

it
y
’s

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
c
re

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie

s
 s

e
c
to

r,
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
d
is

tr
ic

t.
 T

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
ff
e
r 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
it
s
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
a
ll 

a
g
e
s
. 

1
3
 

D
a
ta
 o
n
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 T
h
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

jo
in

tl
y
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fu

tu
re

 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
th

a
t 
w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
d
a
ta

 b
e
 

d
is

ti
n
g
u
is

h
e
d
 b

y
 a

g
e
 a

n
d
 

g
e
n
d
e
r 
fo

r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

h
a
rm

, 
b
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 
e
th

n
ic

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
, 
d
is

a
b
le

d
, 
L
G

B
T
 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 C
D

R
P

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
s
 f
a
r 
a
s
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

p
ic

k
e
d
 u

p
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
a
ta

 
g
ro

u
p
 (
a
n
a
ly

s
ts

 w
o
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 
P

o
lic

e
, 
N

H
S

 B
ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 e

tc
) 

B
y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t
o
 h

o
ld

 d
a
ta

 o
n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

a
y
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

. 

T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

 P
o
lic

e
, 
A
m

b
u
la

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
id

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
, 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

g
e
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
d
e
r.
 T

h
o
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 
d
a
ta

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
  

68



a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 
m

in
o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

R
M

 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

. 

1
4
 

P
o
li
c
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
d
v
is
o
ry
 g
ro
u
p
  

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 O

ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

’s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 a
n
 

o
ld

e
r 
p
e
rs

o
n
 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 P

o
lic

e
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
. 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 P

o
lic

e
 a

re
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

N
/A

 

T
h
is

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

P
C

 
b
y
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
ir
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 2

8
 O

c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
e
 O

ld
e
r 
P

e
o
p
le

’s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 a

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 P

o
lic

e
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 w

h
o
 h

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 I
A

G
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
th

e
re

 b
e
 a

 c
ri
m

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 a

n
 e

ld
e
r 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
A

G
, 
th

e
n
 o

th
e
r 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
  

 

1
5
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 

to
 f
a
c
ili
ta

te
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
is

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

g
ro

u
p
. 

 N
/A

 

 N
/A

 

 A
S

C
&

H
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
a
p
t 
th

e
ir
 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 u

ti
lis

e
 C

R
M

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

 

A
ft
e
r 
c
a
re

fu
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

‘I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 
E

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
’ 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
ro

lle
d
 

o
u
t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 t
h
e
re

 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
o
p
in

io
n
 w

a
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 
b
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
 e

n
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
b
y
 e

m
p
o
w

e
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

m
a
k
in

g
 b

e
tt
e
r 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

 T
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
0
. 

 

69



1
6
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  
 

 T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

’s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

P
C

S
T
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

y
 l
e
a
d
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

N
/A

 

A
S

C
&

H
 w

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
: 
 •
 

R
a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

b
o
u
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
le

 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 s

k
ill
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
  

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
  

•
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 
m

o
n
e
y
  

T
h
e
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 a
re

 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
, 
in

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m

e
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 o

ld
e
r 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
  
 

1
7
 

B
&
H
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

C
ri
m
e
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 D
ru
g
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
–
2
0
1
1
 T

h
e
  

 P
a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

p
a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
o
r 
k
e
e
p
in

g
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 N
/A

 

 T
h
e
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 a
re

 t
o
 

b
e
g
in

 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 
C

ri
m

e
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

ru
g
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 S
tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
 –

 
2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
is

 

70



m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 f
e
a
tu

re
 m

o
re

 
p
ro

m
in

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 B

&
H

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

C
ri
m

e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

ru
g
s
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
8
 –

 2
0
1
1
. 

 

 A
S

C
&

H
 w

o
u
ld

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is

 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
s
a
fe

ty
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
  

1
8
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
  

 T
h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
s
k
s
 i
ts

 
p
a
re

n
t 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 E

C
S
O

S
C

 
to

 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
is

 s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

It
 a

ls
o
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 E
C

S
O

S
C

 t
o
 

a
d
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
to

 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 N
/A

 

  A
S

C
&

H
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 
d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 P

C
S
T
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

  

71



72



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 2
8
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

: 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

V
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
S

e
x

u
a

l 
V

io
le

n
c

e
. 
 R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 

N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

A
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

fo
r 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

B
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 j
o
in
tl
y
 b
y
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 C
Y
P
T
, 
th
e
 p
o
lic
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

C
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
s
 a
ll 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

D
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s
in
g
le
 l
e
a
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 
    J
o
in
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
S
e
x
u
a
l 
V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
n
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
 S
u
s
s
e
x
 w
id
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

(p
o
lic
e
, 
N
H
S
, 
E
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 W
e
s
t 
S
u
s
s
e
x
) 
 A
 

s
in
g
le
 l
e
a
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
is
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
n
g
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
S
e
x
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
. 
 A
 c
it
y
w
id
e
 S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
ls
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

T
h
e
 S
u
s
s
e
x
 W
id
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 (
o
f 

w
h
ic
h
 B
&
H
 i
s
 a
 p
a
rt
) 
a
re
 n
o
w
 p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 3
 

to
 5
 y
e
a
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 I
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
, 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

73



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
2
 -
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r  
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 
N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

w
o
m
e
n
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-2
5
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

a
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 
A
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
1
6
-2
5
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
S
u
rv
iv
o
rs
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
r.
  
T
o
 

b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 w
it
h
in
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

2
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 u
n
w
a
n
te
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 
  

3
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
 H
ID
V
A
 w
o
rk
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 

A
c
c
id
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 w
it
h
in
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 
A
 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 A
d
v
is
o
r 
in
 A
&
E
 i
s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
. 
 T
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

(t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
t)
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

1
9
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
w
h
e
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
lo
c
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
w
a
rd
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 t
h
re
e
 t
o
 f
iv
e
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 
T
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

2
0
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
r 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 
T
h
e
 j
o
in
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 T
o
 b
e
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

2
1
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
it
y
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
s
 

b
e
in
g
 a
 m
a
jo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
 I
n
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 

A
g
re
e
d
 
T
h
e
 j
o
in
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
re
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 o
n
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
, 
c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 

74



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
3
 -
 

th
is
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t,
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
a
t 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
o
s
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
. 
 I
n
 o
rd
e
r 

to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
is
, 
a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
is
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
. 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
p
p
in
g
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
it
y
 w
id
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
. 
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 d
u
e
 

c
o
u
rs
e
. 

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
a

p
a

c
it

y
 o

f 
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
S

e
c

to
r:

 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 

o
r 
N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

6
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
 g
re
a
tl
y
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

1
5
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 a
ll 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

1
8
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
re
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 
  S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 

s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 r
a
p
e
 c
ri
s
is
, 
c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 I
S
V
A
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
 A
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 o
n
e
 t
o
 o
n
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
re
 a
re
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

7
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
A
R
C
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 a
re
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

A
n
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
ro
u
p
 i
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 

b
ri
n
g
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fo
re
n
s
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

 

75



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
4
 -
 

  S
A

R
C

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 S

e
x

u
a

l 
V

io
le

n
c

e
 E

x
p

e
rt

 R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r  
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 

N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

8
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
 

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
d
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
2
4
 h
o
u
r 
s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

T
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 a
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 S
u
s
s
e
x
 w
id
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
in
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

  

F
u

tu
re

 W
o

rk
 F

o
rc

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
s

: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 
N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
fr
o
n
tl
in
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 a
re
 t
ra
in
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 t
o
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 

v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

1
1
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
w
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 c
o
m
e
 i
n
to
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 a
re
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
w
o
m
e
n
-o
n
ly
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 
T
h
e
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

s
k
ill
s
 o
f 
fr
o
n
t 
lin
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
, 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 o
r 
s
e
x
u
a
l 

v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

      

76



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
5
 -
 

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
in

g
: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 
N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
2
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 b
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

1
6
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
te
p
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 l
o
c
a
lly
 t
o
 

a
g
re
e
 a
 m
e
th
o
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 N
I2
6
. 
 I
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 
P
o
lic
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

w
it
h
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
A
R
C
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 

re
g
u
la
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
ra
p
e
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
fo
rm
s
 o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 w
id
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
 S
e
v
e
n
te
e
n
 

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
re
 a
g
re
e
d
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

p
la
n
. 
 T
h
e
 S
a
fe
 I
n
 T
h
e
 C
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
. 
 

  S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 A

d
u

lt
s

: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r  
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 

N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
7
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 b
o
th
 

th
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
’ 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
re
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
e
n
io
r 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 

 

77



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
6
 -
 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
: 

R
e
c
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 o
r 
N
o
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
r 
lik
e
ly
 d
a
te
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

4
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 

th
e
ra
p
e
u
ti
c
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
e
t.
 

5
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 d
is
p
la
y
 s
e
x
u
a
lly
 h
a
rm
fu
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
e
t.
 

9
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 h
o
w
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 t
o
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
 f
ro
m
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
 h
o
lis
ti
c
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 s
u
c
h
 c
a
s
e
s
 

is
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

1
3
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 m
u
c
h
 g
re
a
te
r 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 

b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
m
a
s
c
u
lin
it
y
 t
o
 

b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

1
4
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 i
n
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
n
te
x
ts
. 
 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 r
a
is
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
re
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
t 
o
f 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 
T
h
e
 c
it
y
’s
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

P
la
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 ‘
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
’.
  
T
h
e
 P
la
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
a
rm
, 
a
b
u
s
e
s
 o
r 

n
e
g
le
c
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
o
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo
it
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
v
io
le
n
c
e
, 
h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
k
e
y
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 a
n
d
 

re
la
te
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 R
e
v
ie
w
, 
S
ta
y
in
g
 S
a
fe
 S
u
b
-G
ro
u
p
 

a
n
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ilo
ts
, 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 

is
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
ly
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
. 

78



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
7
 -
 

 

79



80



Item 28 Appendix 3 
 
Extract from Community Safety Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy 2011 – 2014: 
 
Sexual Violence, Abuse and Exploitation, the Sex Industry, and Trafficking 

 

 

Outcome: Sexual violence and abuse is reduced 

 
Sub-outcomes: 

• Increased awareness and knowledge of sexual violence and its impact 

• Improved physical safety and freedom from harm 

• Increased knowledge and skills of children, young people and adults about forming 
healthy relationships 

• Raised public awareness about risk factors and promotion of personal safety; and 
healthy relationships based on mutual respect 

• Victims feel safe to disclose, are listened to, believed and not judged 

• Victims of sexual violence and abuse are supported through the criminal justice 
process and post sentencing 

• Re-occurrence of offending behaviour is minimised by the strengthening of 
mechanisms and procedures for assessing and managing the risk posed by sex 
offenders 

• Enhanced assessment of risk and therapeutic support services for children 

• Enhanced and better integrated support services for victims and survivors of sexual 
violence and abuse 

• Better information on services available and how to access them 

• Improved physical, emotional, social and personal well-being  

 

Work in this area covers issues of sexual violence and abuse, as well as sexual 
exploitation, the sex industry and human trafficking. 

81



 

 

 

Definitions: 

Sexual violence and abuse is “any behaviour perceived to be of a sexual nature 
which is unwanted and takes place without consent or understanding”.   

This includes: 

• Rape and sexual assault  

• Sexual violence and abuse (by partners, family members and by strangers).  

• Sexual Harassment 

• Sexual Exploitation 

• Child sexual abuse  
 
The definition includes all of those affected by such violence, including women, men and 
children, but also recognises the strong associations between sexual violence and 
gender-based violence which represent a significant cause and consequence of 
inequality for women.  

The sex industry includes prostitution, pornography and other commercial sex-based 
activities such as lap-dancing, often - but not solely - associated with the ‘night time 
economy’.  

Trafficking into and within the UK is internationally recognised to be linked to prostitution; 
facilitating the movement of women for prostitution within (as well as across) borders 
constitutes trafficking.  State agencies have a responsibility to tackle the demand for 
prostitution (UN Optional Protocol on Trafficking in Human Beings). 

 

Why is this a priority? 
Sexual violence and abuse has a devastating 
impact on victims, families and society as a 
whole. The effects of sexual violence and 
abuse can be wide-ranging and can include 
long-lasting physical, mental and sexual health 
problems.  

Much rape and sexual violence occurs in 
families, where children and young people are 
the victims, and most rapes are carried out by 
someone the victim knows. Nationally, around 
eight per cent of all recorded rape cases is a 
rape of a man, and research shows that men 
find it less easy to identify as victims and ask 
for help. Although men, women and children 
can all experience sexual violence, women are 
disproportionately victims, and as such sexual 
violence is recognised as both a cause and 
consequence of gender inequality.  

Nationally, 10,000 women will be sexually 
assaulted and 2,000 women will be raped in 
one week. Nearly a quarter of women have 
been stalked since the age of 16, and 18% of 
stalking leads to rape or sexual assault. Home 
Office research shows that 3.7 million women 

Main Partners 
Survivors Network  

Mankind UK (Newhaven) 
Sussex Police (Rape & Serious Sexual 

Assault Steering Group)   

Crown Prosecution Service  
HM Courts Service 

Surrey and Sussex Probation Trust 
Brighton & Hove City Council  

(Children, Youth and Families Service; 
Clermont Centre; Adult Social Care Service; 

Housing Services)  
NHS Brighton & Hove  

Local Safeguarding Children Board  
Adult Protection Board 

Rise 
Inspire Project 

Brighton Women’s Centre 
Brighton Oasis Project 
Sussex Central YMCA  

Sexual Violence Reference Group 
Sex Workers Strategy Group 

Sexual Exploitation Steering Group 
Domestic Violence Commissioners Group  

Domestic Violence Forum  
Alcohol Strategy Group 

82



 

 

 

in England and Wales have been sexually assaulted since the age of 16; and across the 
UK there are upwards of five million adult women who experienced some form of sexual 
abuse during childhood. Home Office research into prostitution also shows that 85 per 
cent of women in prostitution report physical abuse in the family, and 45 per cent report 
familial sexual abuse. Between 50-75 per cent of women in prostitution entered before 
they were 18; the average age women become involved in the sex industry is 12 years 
old. Other research into trafficking across Europe found that 95 per cent of women 
trafficked into prostitution suffered physical and sexual abuse, with the same number 
experiencing symptoms of trauma similar to those suffered by torture victims.  

Research tells us that women have a greater fear of rape or sexual assault than any 
other crime, and this can significantly limit and constrain their lives. Women’s routine 
decision making is organised around personal safety; and women of all ages spend 
their lives avoiding and minimising the risk of rape and other forms of violence which 
restricts women’s ability to fully participate in society. 

Locally, the 2010 Citizens Panel survey showed that 13% of women, compared with 2% 
of men in Brighton and Hove are very or fairly worried about being sexually assaulted. 
Preventing and reducing the incidence of sexual violence and abuse is therefore 
essential if we are to comply with gender equality duties.   

The individual, economic and social cost of sexual offences is higher than any other 
type of crime. The overall cost of sexual offences in Brighton and Hove in 2009/10 was 
estimated to be in excess of £61 million.  

As a Community Safety Partnership we have an important role to play in the prevention 
of rape and sexual violence, in providing services to better protect victims, and in 
bringing perpetrators to justice. 

Local picture 
In 2009/10 there were 328 police recorded sexual offences in Brighton and Hove. 
However, sexual violence and abuse is significantly under-reported to the police. In 
Brighton & Hove during 2008 and 2009 45% of police recorded sexual violence offences 
against women were committed against 15-24 year olds. The 2007/8 British Crime 
Survey found that just 11% of victims who had experienced serious sexual assault since 
the age of 16 had reported their most recent experience to the police and 40% had told 
no-one at all about it. Research suggests that those who have suffered rape are less 
likely to report than those who have suffered a sexual assault, those victimised by 
partners are less likely to report, as are men, disabled people, people from Black and 
minority communities, and those working in the sex industry. The actual number of 
sexual offences in Brighton and Hove is therefore likely to be far greater than police 
recorded statistics show.  

In Brighton & Hove, it is estimated that nearly 55,000 women will at some point in their 
lives be a victim of violence including rape, sexual assault, sexual harassment, 
trafficking and sexual exploitation. In 2009/10, 2,736 women and girls locally aged 16-
59 years experienced sexual assault, and 6,682 women were victims of stalking 
(extrapolated from British Crime Survey data). This number would be higher still if all the 
city’s population is considered.  

Nationally and locally, there is a strong correlation between sexual violence and alcohol. 
Victims of rape and sexual violence may experience problematic alcohol use as a 
response to the violence and as an early predictor of post-traumatic stress disorder 
development.  Although rape and sexual violence happens at any time of day, local data 
of reported rape and sexual violence indicates links to the night time economy both in 

83



 

 

 

terms of a city centre geographical hotspot and peaks in offences occurring on Friday 
and Saturday nights. There may be a number of reasons for this association, one of 
those being that perpetrators use alcohol as an excuse, and they may target victims 
because they perceive their alcohol consumption makes them more vulnerable, less 
likely to be able to consent to sex, or remember details of the attack. However, rape and 
sexual assault survivors are never responsible for the attack or the perpetrator’s 
behaviour, no matter how much alcohol was consumed. Responsibility lies with the 
perpetrator. 

Nationally, conviction rates for sexual offences are too low. However, it should be 
acknowledged that they are at their highest level for ten years. The Sussex Sexual 
Assault Referral Centre (SARC) (set up in September 2008) based in Crawley 
combines forensic and clinical services for people who have been raped or sexually 
assaulted as well as jointly delivering locally provided counselling and support services 
in the city. The integrated and victim focussed approach increases the quality of 
evidence collected, and victims’ ability to support prosecutions against the perpetrators. 
In 2009/10, the SARC supported 71 Brighton & Hove clients. In November 2009, 
Brighton and Hove supported the development of an independent rape crisis centre – 
Survivors Network – which works with both current and childhood sexual abuse. 

People working in the sex industry are amongst those who are at higher risk of 
victimisation of sexual violence and are less likely to report incidents. While Brighton & 
Hove does not have ‘on street‘ prostitution, a significant number of women in 
prostitution are based in sex parlours in the city. A local survey revealed that of those 
surveyed, 58% of sex workers reported that they had experienced violence or abuse 
and, of those, only 13% had reported those incidents to the police.   

Childhood sexual abuse and that experienced by young people is also included within 
the definition of sexual violence and abuse. 20% of all police recorded sexual offences 
in 2008 and 2009 were committed against children under the age of 16. This rises to 
25% when including all historical reports to the police of childhood sexual abuse.  

Current context 
In November 2010, the Coalition Government launched their Violence Against Women 
and Girls Strategy, identifying sexual violence and abuse as a government priority. The 
strategy emphasises the importance of preventative work, challenging the attitudes and 
behaviour which foster violence against women and girls, and the importance of 
intervening at an early stage to prevent violence from occurring. The strategy’s 
accompanying action plan emphasises the importance of partnership working so that 
the best outcomes for victims and families can be obtained.  

As a response to the findings of the Barnardos Tipping the Iceberg Report 2007 and a 
University of Brighton Out on My Own Report, the WISE project has been funded to 
work with the safeguarding board to develop a support pathway, run assertive outreach 
with young people, train organisations and raise awareness in the local community 
about young people and sexual exploitation. It also runs the ‘eyes and ears’ campaign 
to enable young people to help communicate messages to other young people.   

Sexual violence and abuse has been a priority for the Partnership since 2008. In June 
2010, Brighton and Hove’s overview and scrutiny panel investigated the level of support 
provided in the city for victims of rape, sexual assault and other serious sexual offences 
and highlighted gaps in the provision of support and it made a series of 
recommendations. Since this time, Sussex-wide joint commissioning arrangements 
have been put in place to establish a Sexual Assault Referral Centre and commission 

84



 

 

 

counselling, rape crisis and Independent Sexual Violence Advisor services which 
provide improved outcomes for victims. 

Where next? 
This strategy and action plan seeks to sustain the progress made in the 2010 plan, 
which jointly commissioned the Sexual Assault Referral Centre and provided a local 
rape crisis and support service, while at the same time identified important additional 
areas of work to deal with the seriousness of sexual violence. Those new areas include 
initiatives which will reduce related risk factors, increase confidence to report, provide 
support through the criminal justice process, enhance services for children and young 
people, and increase knowledge about how to form healthy and not abusive 
relationships. Targeted work is also included for those at particular risk such as those 
working in the sex industry. There are also actions aimed at reducing fear, especially 
among women. We recognise the added value of co-ordinating actions across city 
services to provide holistic services which provide the best service to victims and which 
accord with good practice. 

Links to other priority areas 
Work around sexual violence and abuse links to a wide range of other areas in this 
Community Safety Strategy. There are clear links with domestic violence, alcohol 
misuse, drugs misuse, preventing reoffending, vulnerable children and families and the 
physical environment, infrastructure and quality of life strategies and action plans.  

Partnership work around sexual violence and abuse also contributes to a number of the 
priorities in the Brighton and Hove Sustainable Community Strategy, including: reducing 
crime and improving safety; improving health and well-being; strengthening 
communities and involving people; and providing quality advice and information 
services.   

The work to address sexual violence and abuse will also be incorporated within a new 
Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy for the city from 2011. 

Implications for equalities and sustainability 
Reducing the incidence of sexual violence and abuse, as well as the fear of 
victimisation, is essential to the physical and mental well-being of Brighton and Hove 
residents, and therefore the social and economic sustainability of the city.  

Sexual violence is both a cause and consequence of gender inequality; women and 
girls are more likely to be victims than men and boys, and young women in particular 
suffer higher levels of victimisation. Work towards achieving the prevention and 
reduction of sexual violence and abuse must address existing gender inequalities which 
can give rise to the behaviour of perpetrators.  Vulnerable and marginalised groups are 
often at increased risk and are less likely to report sexual violence and access help. 
This work is therefore central to the delivery of gender, as well as other equality duties.  

Parallel plans 
• Brighton & Hove Domestic Violence 

Needs Assessment and Commissioning 
Strategy 2011  

• Brighton & Hove Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment 2011  

• Brighton & Hove Alcohol Needs 
Assessment 2010/11  

• Reports and Action Plans of the Adult 
Safeguarding Board  

• Reports & Action Plans of the Local 
Children Safeguarding Board   

• Sex Worker Strategy and Action Plan  

• Brighton & Hove Sustainable Community 
Strategy 

85



 

 

 

• Brighton & Hove Divisional Policing Plan 
2010-13 

• Sussex Police: Rape, Sexual Violence and 
Serious Sexual Offences Strategy  

• National Violence Against Women and 
Girls Strategy 2011  

 
 

Key performance indicators (to be confirmed) 
• Number of police recorded sexual offences 

• Percentage of victims of a police recorded serious sexual offence receiving 
services at the SARC 

• Percentage of SARC referrals to independent support services who receive 
support 

• Percentage of finalised court cases with a successful outcome 

• Percentage of referrals to i) the SARC or ii) other specialist agencies who are 
repeat clients 

 

Sexual Violence, Abuse and Exploitation, the Sex Industry, and Trafficking 
Action Plan 

 

Area of work 1  

Achieve an understanding of the nature and prevalence of sexual violence in Brighton & 
Hove and of actions that will decrease attrition rates 

Actions 

1.1 Continue to identify the nature and prevalence of sexual violence in Brighton & Hove, 
recognising the variety of contexts in which it can take place and the different profiles and 
circumstances of victims and offenders. Analytical and summary reports to be regularly updated 
from the six monthly Strategic Assessments of Sussex Police as well as drawing on the findings of 
the Sussex and Glasgow Caledonian Universities Research (2010)    

1.2 Strategies, working groups and services to gather information about the nature and prevalence 
of sexual violence within their domain and information to be aggregated within central Partnership 
analysis documents which inform service development.   

1.3 Implement a multi–agency data capture system that includes information from voluntary and 
statutory agencies including the police, sexual health and other appropriate services.  

1.4. Introduce integrated IT solutions which would enable extraction of information when a victim 
and offender is perceived ‘Under the Influence’ by the police.    

Area of work 2  

Prevent sexual violence through increased awareness of its nature and prevalence in all 
contexts and of the practical measures that can be taken to reduce risks and opportunities 

Actions 

2.1 Communications to perpetrators and potential perpetrators about the criminal justice penalties 
associated with rape and sexual violence, and incorporate the association between perpetrators 
drinking and sexual violence within alcohol prevention publicity/education programmes, which 
promote safe drinking practices and the message that alcohol is no excuse for perpetrating rape or 
sexual abuse.   

86



 

 

 

2.2 Raise awareness of rape and sexual violence and the help available amongst young women 
and on university campuses, including the consequences of rape in terms of sentencing, utilising 
‘student nights; and fresher week events. 

2.3 All Strategy Groups, including those which are addressing domestic violence, to incorporate 
information about sexual violence in their publicity.  

2.4 Incorporate preventative measures, targeting potential perpetrators of rape and sexual 
violence, within the good practice initiatives which are led by the Licensing Strategy Group and 
Violent Crime & Alcohol Related Crime and Disorder Groups   

2.5 Develop improved outcomes for young people who display sexually harmful behaviours 
through commencing a series of activities which identify and disseminate a model of inter-agency 
working based on existing practices and available research evidence; examine the transition from 
child protection/youth justice arrangements to adult processes and ensure the effective 
implementation of appropriate mechanisms; identify inter-agency and multi-disciplinary training 
needs; and develop and disseminate best practice information. 

2.6 In recognition of the association between stalking and harassment and incidents of sexual 
violence and abuse, work with specialist third sector organisations and criminal justice partners to 
develop an effective community based response to incidences of stalking and harassment, which 
is linked with the domestic violence action plan.  

Area of work 3  

Increase reporting of sexual violence through improved public confidence in the criminal 
justice system and lower rate of attrition which is well publicised  

Actions 

3.1 Support Sussex Police in the delivery of their Rape, Sexual Violence and Serious Sexual 
Offences Strategy which aims to improve the investigation, detection and prosecution of cases, 
identifying appropriate partnership and support action for the Community Safety Partnership   

3.2 Raise awareness of the role of the police Sexual Offence Liaison Officers and develop 
integrated response services with the Sexual Assault Referral Centre and independent rape crisis, 
counselling and Independent Sexual Violence Advisor services.    

3.3 Publicising the revised national handbook: ‘From Report to Court: a Handbook for Adult 
Survivors of Sexual Violence ‘ which meets the needs of victims and witnesses.  

3.4 Target information towards those groups who are most at risk and/or least likely to report, 
recognising issues such as gender and gender identity, ethnicity, sexuality, disability, age, religion 
and belief.   

Area of work 4  

Improved victim care and support services which meet survivor needs, and also assist 
police investigations and prosecutions and support improved attrition rates.  

Actions 

4.1 Jointly commission and participate in the Sussex Management Board of the Sexual Assault 
Referral Centre (in Crawley) and establish effective arrangements for the care and support of 
victims in Brighton & Hove. The joint commissioning and management arrangements also links 
with NHS sexual health strategies and public health delivery plans.  

4.2 In partnership with the Third Sector organisations, sustain support for the provision of local 
rape crisis services providing immediate care and support as well as provision for sustained 
support and access to related services.  

87



 

 

 

4.3 Sustain support to the Independent Sexual Violence Advisors who, together with SARC 
services,  provide support, risk assessment and safety planning for victims of rape or other forms 
of sexual violence, whether as an adult or a child. Link with the specialist DV and criminal courts 
where appropriate and support clients through statement taking, pre-court visits and trials, also 
referring clients to health, housing and childcare services.   

4.4 Training for professionals who may come in to contact with victims, including those who may 
deal with first disclosures (GPs, A&E providers, Health Visitors, Mental Health providers, youth 
workers, voluntary sector agencies, community groups). 

4.5 Identify appropriate actions which will ensure compliance with Gender Equality duties, 
particularly those which require the provision of appropriate services for victims of crimes where 
the majority of victims are women. Also pilot a service to identify appropriate approaches for male 
victims of sexual crimes which is delivered in an accessible and appropriate environment.  

4.6 Local arrangements are in place so that those who report are linked in to independent support 
agencies; that the booklet CPS Policy for Prosecuting Cases of Rape should be widely available to 
all victims and should be given as a matter of routine to all rape complainants who have decided to 
report the rape to the police; that measures are introduced to routinely measure and review victim 
satisfaction with the CJS. 

4.7 Develop a holistic model for intervention for families with multiple and complex needs, which 
often involve historical or current sexual violence, ensuring specialist sexual violence (and 
domestic violence) services are central to that model, and clear identification and referral 
pathways to support services for survivors and criminal justice/offender programmes for 
perpetrators.  

Area of work 5  

To support the work programme of the Sex Workers Steering Group which seeks to reduce 
risks and provide routes out of prostitution and related circumstances.  

Actions 

5.1 Continue to support the Steering Group work programme which is delivered by the delivery 
organisations and which together further develop a strategic approach to rape and sexual 
violence.   

5.2 Support the police led Operations which seek to identify and respond to trafficked women and 
their traffickers, and aim to ensure that local victims of trafficking from within the UK and from 
abroad, have access to safety, support and protection.   

5.3 Encourage the active and increased use of the ‘Ugly Mugs’ or ‘Dodgy Punter’ schemes, and 
other national good practice initiatives, which include challenging demand for prostitution, 
increasing safety of and support for those in prostitution, providing safe routes out of prostitution, 
and identifying perpetrators and bring them to justice.   

5.4 Continue to target those most at risk, through maintaining relationships with individuals in the 
sex industry, ensuring they get increased access into drug and alcohol services, alternative 
housing and employment options in accordance with their needs.   

Area of work 6  

Reduce fear and raise awareness of the reality of rape and sexual assault for women, 
increase women’s ability to report and/or seek help, and publicise any improvements in 
attrition rates and sentencing  

Actions 

6.1 All work aimed at improving public perceptions of levels of crime and disorder and reduced 
fear of crime, to particularly address those crimes of serious sexual offences, sexual assault and 
rape and others which are of most concern to women. 

88



 

 

 

 

Area of work 7  

Safeguard and build the resilience of children and young people to sexual assault and 
exploitation and respond to the threat of it 

Actions 

7.1 Continue the delivery of the Every Child Matters outcomes and in particular, deliver the work 
programmes of the ‘Staying Safe’ and ‘Be Healthy’ work programme which are overseen by the 
Local Safeguarding Children Board. These programmes include actions to reduce the risks 
associated with unsupervised internet use by children and young people.  

7.2 Implement a whole school approach to sexual violence prevention (linked with domestic 
violence prevention approaches in schools). Education programmes within schools and those 
targeted towards young people - which address alcohol and drug misuse, sex and relationship 
education, teenage pregnancy and other risks - to also include awareness raising of the 
association with sexual violence, issues of coercion and consent, the consequences of rape and 
sexual violence for perpetrators and the help available for victims.    

7.3 Reduce sexual and sexist bullying in schools -Work with schools to prepare for Ofsted 
inspections by working on the key area of inspection that focuses more strongly on behaviour and 
safety, including bullying. Inspectors will look for evidence of how much bullying there is in schools 
and how well it is dealt with. 

7.4 Implement the findings of the Joint Agency Audit into the Incidence, Recording and Outcomes 
of Child Sexual Abuse Investigations in Brighton & Hove.  

7.5 Identify appropriate and effective early interventions for young people who sexually abuse or 
are at risk of abusing and support the delivery of those interventions. 

7.6 Explore how agencies undertaking generic work with children and young people, such as 
CAMHS, include classifications of sexual abuse in their initial assessments. 

7.7 Continue to support the WISE project and further implementation of the findings of ‘Tipping 
The Iceberg’ – A Pan-Sussex Study of Young People at Risk of Sexual Exploitation and Trafficking 

7.8 Support compliance as appropriate with ‘Special Measures’ in courts (compliance with 
‘Speaking Up for Justice’ and Youth Justice and Criminal Evidence Act 1999) which offers 
enhanced protection for child witnesses 

Area of work 8  

Work towards the development of a holistic strategy for tackling rape and serious sexual 
offences and violence which accords to national good practice, builds on existing plans 
and expertise together with a structure which supports multi-agency delivery of an agreed 
work programme  

Actions 

8.1 Continue to support the multi-agency Sexual Violence and Abuse Reference Group which 
receives reports from and co-ordinates actions being taken forward by the individual working 
groups that are identified within this Strategy. 

 

89



90



ENVIRONMENT & 
COMMUNITY SAFETY 
OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 29 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

Subject: Future of Crime & Disorder Scrutiny 

Date of Meeting: 31 October 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director Communities 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110 

 E-mail: Tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

1.1 This paper outlines for Members elements of the Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011, focusing on the impact of elected Police 
and Crime Commissioners. A similar paper was discussed at the 
Community Safety Forum on the 10th October and an extract from the 
draft minutes of that meeting are attached as Appendix 1.  

 

1.2 Also presented to Members is background information on how crime 
and disorder matters are currently scrutinised in Brighton and Hove 
through the Community Safety Forum/ECSOSC protocol (Appendix 2).  

 

1.3 Members are invited to comment upon the implications for the local 
accountability regarding crime and disorder matters and give officers a 
steer as to what scrutiny structures should be developed by the council.  

 

2. Recommendations  

2.1 That ECSOSC: 
 

1. Note and consider the information in the report and the potential 
implications arising from the appointment of Police and Crime 
Commissioners and Police and Crime Panels in November 
2012. Further guidance, codes of practice and secondary 
legislation will be published for local authorities in November and 
January  

 

2. Make comment regarding the issues raised to be taken forward 
in developing a local response to the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 and changes to the scrutiny function. 

91



 

 

3. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (PRSRA)  

3.1 The PRSRA 2011 introduces directly elected Police and Crime 
Commissioners (PCCs). For each police force area in the country the 
public will be asked to vote for one person to be elected to the role. The 
election will be held on 15 November 2012. At this point, police 
authorities will cease to exist and will hand all responsibility to the 
elected PCC. 

 

3.2 In Sussex, the current Police Authority has 17 members, made up of 
elected councillors and independent lay people, who oversee, 
scrutinise and set the strategic direction of Sussex Police. The PCC will 
replace the current police authority membership /members in its 
entirety and will hold the Chief Constable to account. However, there 
will also be a Police and Crime Panel (PCP) who will in turn, hold the 
PCC to account and act as a ‘check and balance’ to the work of PCC.   

 

3.3 There will be between 17 and 20 people on the Police and Crime Panel 
who will be made up of elected representatives from the district, 
borough, unitary and county councils in Sussex together with some 
independent member representation. There may also be co-opted 
members. The local authority is required to ensure that the Panel is in 
place and fully functional by October 2012. Information including 
secondary legislation and protocols are to be published as guidance for 
local authorities in coming months.     

 

4. Specific Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner   
4.1 The main responsibilities of the PCC will be to:  

• Secure an effective and efficient police force for their area  

• Appoint the Chief Constable and hold him/ her to account  

• Determine local policing priorities and in consultation with the Chief 
Constable, publish an five year Police and Crime Plan  

• Set the annual force budget and Council Tax precept  

• Produce an annual report setting out progress against the 
objectives in the Police and Crime Plan   

• Control of all central government funding for policing in the County 

• From 2013, have control of funding which currently is passed 
directly to local authorities to deliver the work of Community Safety 
Partnerships and Drug Intervention Programmes as well as 
funding for services to address violence against women and girls     

• Co-operate with the criminal justice system in their area  

• Contribute to the national and international policing capabilities set 
out by the Home Secretary in the Strategic Policing requirement  

5. Implications of the PRSRA for Brighton and Hove 

5.1 Operational responsibility for the day to day work of the police will 
remain with the chief constable. However, the introduction of PCCs will 

92



 

have a considerable impact on local authorities and could result in 
fundamental changes for community safety partnerships. Unlike police 
authorities, PCC’s will not be ‘responsible authorities’ under the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998, so will not be members of community safety 
partnerships.   

5.2 However, there will be a mutual duty on PCCs and Community Safety 
Partnerships to co-operate to reduce crime and disorder and reduce 
offending. Both will also be required to have regard to each others 
priorities when drawing up the five year Police and Crime Plan and the 
Commissioners will be active participants in priority setting under the 
statutory requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. Together 
with statutory partners they will need to consider a strategic 
assessment and recommendations for reducing crime and disorder in 
the city and agree a Community Safety Strategy in consultation with 
communities and neighbourhoods. Community safety partnerships will 
to some extent be accountable to commissioners.  

5.3 PCCs will be elected on a countywide mandate, however, it will be 
imperative that the needs and issues in relation to community safety 
and policing in Brighton and Hove and how those may differ from the 
rest of the county, are understood. In principle, the opportunity to do 
that will be through councils in a force area nominating representatives 
to serve on the Police and Crime Panel for the area. The Panel’s role 
will be to scrutinise the PCC’s decisions and actions, to veto the PCC’s 
precepts and nominations for chief constable, to summon the PCC to 
answer questions and to review the commissioners police and crime 
plans.   

5.4 Through those arrangements, the Commissioner and the Police and 
Crime Panel will also need to understand the sophisticated level of 
community engagement and participation in Brighton & Hove in order 
to effectively support the delivery of policing and community safety in 
the city. 

6. Existing Accountability Mechanisms 

6.1 Safe in the City is the local Community Safety Partnership (formally the 
Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership: CDRP). The Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 introduced a statutory duty that the police, local 
authorities and other Responsible Authorities work together and in 
partnership with others to reduce crime and disorder and improve 
safety in their local areas. 

6.2 The Police and Justice Act 2006 made provision for the scrutiny of 
these partnerships through local designated crime and disorder 
scrutiny committees. The role of scrutiny is to scrutinise the partnership 
as a whole, as each organisation is already subject to its own 
accountability procedures. 

93



 

6.3 Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 requires every local 
authority to have a crime and disorder committee with the power to 
review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in connection 
with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and 
disorder functions. 

6.4 In the Brighton and Hove ECSOSC is the officially designated Crime 
and Disorder Committee. However a protocol was agreed in 2009 
managing the relationship between ECSOSC and the Community 
Safety Forum (Appendix 2).  

7. Future Scrutiny Arrangements 

7.1 Consultation will shortly start on changes to the scrutiny committee 
structure; this will recommend moving from 6 to 4 committees, broadly 
based on the Strategic Directors’ portfolios of responsibilities. Most of 
the work would be undertaken through panels and workshop sessions 
with less reliance on formal meetings.  

7.2 It is proposed therefore that community safety issues would be dealt 
with by a ‘Communities Scrutiny Committee’ (CSC), a separate ‘Place 
Scrutiny Committee’ would take ECSOSC’s remaining responsibilities. 
The CSC would be designated as the Crime and Disorder Committee.  

7.3 There are a number of questions Members may wish to consider in 
debating this issue namely:  

1. How accountable will the new arrangements make Sussex Police 
to the population of Brighton and Hove? 

2. Locally what arrangements would Members like to see 
implemented to complement the Police and Crime Commissioners 
and Police and Crime Panel (PCP)?  

3. Are Members content for scrutiny of community safety/crime and 
disorder issues to be within a ‘Communities’ scrutiny committee? 
Or do they wish for a separate committee?  

4. Do Members wish to retain the existing protocol between the 
Community Safety Forum and the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 
Committee?  

8. CONSULTATION 

8.1 This paper is part of the consultation process with Members.  

 

9. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

Financial Implications: 

9.1 Any change to scrutiny arrangements would be met from within the 
existing scrutiny budget unless otherwise agreed.  

 

Legal Implications 

94



 

9.2 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill received Royal Assent 
on 15 September 2011 and will be brought into force on an unspecified 
date by order of the Secretary of State. 
 

Section 28 of the Act sets out the duties and other functions of the 
police and crime panels outside London, and cross-refers to Schedule 
6 which defines how the panels are to be constituted.  Section 29 
grants the panels power to require attendance of and information from 
the Commissioner and his/her staff.  Section 30 gives the panels power 
to suspend the Commissioner in defined circumstances. 

 

All other relevant legislation is referred to in the body of the report. 

 

Lawyer consulted: Oliver Dixon    Date: 14 /10/11 

 

Equalities Implications: 

9.3  There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.  

 

Sustainability Implications: 

9.4 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report.  
 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

9.5 These are set out in the body of the report.  
 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

9.6 This report focuses on accountability issues, risks are therefore 
focuses on a lack of democratic accountability with regard to crime and 
disorder issues. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

9.7 None directly from this report.  
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

Appendices: 

1. Extract from the Community Safety Forum minutes (10th October) 

2. The Crime and Disorder Protocol 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms: 

None 

 

Background Documents: 

The Council’s Constitution 

 

95



 

Appendix 2 – Protocol on relationship between the Community Safety 
Forum and the Environment and Community Safety Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Designated as the Crime and Disorder Committee) 

 

As provided for under the Council’s constitution, the Environment and 
Community Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ECSOSC) is 
designated the Crime and Disorder Committee for the purposes of section 19 
of the Police and Justice Act 2006 (‘the Act’). 

 

It is recognised that the Community Safety Forum (‘the Forum’) is in a position 
to resolve many of the crime and disorder issues that members will wish to 
raise. Members wishing to raise a crime and disorder issue should direct the 
matter in the first instance to the Forum. 

 

The ECSOSC will, when crime and disorder matters are referred to it without 
first being presented to the Forum, note them and refer them to the next 
appropriate meeting of the Forum. 

 

In fulfilment of its role as CDC, the ECSOSC shall meet to review or scrutinise 
the decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by 
the responsible authorities of the crime and disorder functions, no less than 
twice in every twelve month period. ECSOSC shall perform this role after 
considering: 

 

• A six monthly update from the Chair of the Forum on its work 

• LAA performance data on community safety issues 

 

The ECSOSC shall also: 

• Deal with any Councillor Call for Action that has already been to the 

Forum but remains unresolved 

• Consider whether, following input from the Forum, to establish an ad 

hoc panel on a crime and disorder matter 

 

Nothing in this protocol prevents a Member from raising issues directly at the 
ECSOSC in accordance with section 19 of the Act. It does, however, provide 
guidance to allow the most efficient and effective resolution of crime, disorder 
and community safety issues. 

 

 

 

96



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 3

0
 

  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 
D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
- 
2
0
1
2
 

 

Is
s
u
e
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 &
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
/D
a
te
s
 

 6
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1
 

 In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
 

W
e
lc
o
m
e
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
  
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 E
C
S
O
S
C
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
, 
C
ri
m
e
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 D
ru
g
s
  
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
1
–
1
4
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

E
C
S
O
S
C
 a
s
k
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
, 
d
a
ta
, 
tr
e
n
d
s
 

 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
V
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
n
d
 P
la
n
t 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
re
p
o
rt
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 

P
la
n
 

E
C
S
O
S
C
 m
a
k
e
s
 6
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
, 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

c
a
rb
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
g
 n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
P
re
lim
in
a
ry
 F
lo
o
d
 R
is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
/s
e
s
s
io
n
 d
a
te
 t
o
 b
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 

In
fo
rm
a
l 
o
n
e
-h
o
u
r 
E
C
S
O
S
C
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 i
s
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 2
2
 J
u
ly
. 
S
u
g
g
e
s
t 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 D
E
F
R
A
 

re
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 R
a
il.
 I
n
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 

re
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 f
lo
o
d
 d
e
fe
n
c
e
 

  

97



5
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 T
im
e
lin
e
 o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

 
C
h
a
ir
s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 –
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 o
n
 c
it
y
w
id
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

h
e
ld
 o
n
 2
2
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

 

P
o
lic
ie
s
 o
n
 G
y
p
s
ie
s
 a
n
d
 T
ra
v
e
lle
rs
 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 p
ro
te
s
te
rs
 

(R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
, 
C
llr
 T
h
e
o
b
a
ld
 

a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 C
llr
 W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld
) 

 

D
e
te
rm
in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
o
n
 T
ra
v
e
lle
rs
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
; 

s
c
o
p
in
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
, 
C
llr
 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 T
a
x
is
 (
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
, 
G
e
ra
ld
in
e
 D
e
s
 M
o
u
lin
s
) 
 

 

D
e
te
rm
in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 2
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 E
C
S
O
S
C
 w
it
h
 i
n
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
; 

W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 

 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie
w
s
; 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
g
ra
tu
la
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
o
 2
6
 

M
a
rc
h
 o
n
ly
 i
f 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 P
re
lim
in
a
ry
 F
lo
o
d
 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

 

E
C
S
O
S
C
 i
s
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 R
a
il 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 

M
a
ri
n
a
 

 

L
e
tt
e
r 
fr
o
m
 D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
a
ir
 s
e
n
t 
to
 D
E
F
R
A
  

In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M
a
ri
n
a
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 R
e
n
e
w
a
b
le
 E
n
e
rg
y
  

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
  

1
4
 J
u
ly
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

 

F
o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
  

N
o
te
d
 

   

98



3
1
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
: 

2
0
m
p
h
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im
it
s
/z
o
n
e
s
  

 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie
w
s
; 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il-
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
F
o
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
V
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

  

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie
w
s
; 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r;
 

P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 C
ri
m
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
  

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
  

 

  2
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

 T
a
x
is
 a
n
d
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 u
p
d
a
te
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 5
 S
e
p
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 C
llr
 L
iz
z
ie
 D
e
a
n
e
 

 

 
 

W
a
s
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
 

99



C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

P
o
lic
y
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
; 
ro
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

 

 

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 C
it
y
w
id
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 W
a
tc
h
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 D
e
c
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
a
fe
ty
 F
o
ru
m
  

 

 
 

 2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
n
e
w
a
b
le
 E
n
e
rg
y
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
 

 

 
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 W
in
te
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
, 
if
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 

 

 
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ti
n
g
 

 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
; 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
P
la
n
s
/ 
S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

 

 

100


	Agenda
	22 Procedural Business
	23 Minutes of the meetings held on 5 September and 14 October 2011 (call-in)
	Item 23 draft minutes 5 September ECSOSC

	24 Chairs Communications
	26 Monitoring the Scrutiny Review of 20mph limits/zones
	Item 26 20mph update Appendix

	27 Council-supported Bus Services
	Item 27 Appendix 1 Procurement Plan
	Item 27 Appendix 2 methodology
	Item 27 Supported Bus Services new Appendix 3

	28 Monitoring Scrutiny Reviews: Services for Victims of Sexual Violence and Older People and Community Safety
	Item 28 CS monitoring Appendix 1
	Item 28 CS monitoring Appendix 2
	Item 28 CS monitoring Appendix 3

	29 Future of Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
	30 ECSOSC Draft Work Plan

